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2012 16

2023
( )
19,705,333.82 55.16
380,398.10 1.06
142,450.18 0.40
142,203.75 0.40
19,213.22 0.05
14,318.06 0.04
5,917.33 0.02
4,619.00 0.01
2,430.58 0.01
748.65 0.00
(4,114.04) (0.01)
(14,315.02) (0.04)
(18,065.18) (0.05)
(23,019.14) (0.06)
(30,583.52) (0.09)
(44,382.17) (0.12)
(49,888.86) (0.14)
(152,127.32) (0.43)
375,803.62 1.05
(1,699.03) 0.00
24.,185,536.67 67.70
EMU 14,995,283.77 41.98
7,011,179.56 19.63
3,643,786.91 10.20
3,099,091.61 8.68
2,833,178.79 7.93
2,375,475.02 6.65
1,846,751.50 5.17
1,558,707.57 4.36
1,456,381.28 4.08
792,301.25 2.22
401,651.65 1.12
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269,753.41 0.76
188,426.96 0.53
(154,378.75) (0.43)
(405,399.94) (1.13)
(491,791.09) (1.38)
(650,753.09) (1.82)
(820,918.10) (2.30)
(922,296.47) (2.58)
(1,834,896.77) (5.14)
(2,747,043.17) (7.69)

(4,427,468.63) (12.39)

(5,558,111.66) (15.56)

(7,039,157.20) (19.70)

(7,254,138.01) (20.31)

(10,916,799.48) (30.56)

(22,213,086.40) (62.18)

(778,732.81) (2.18)
19,300,705.60 54.03
16,423,153.58 45.97
35,723,859.18 100.00

( 4,770 )
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(2023 )
- « D « D « D « .
2/22/2024 3,770,000.00 2024/2/22 | 3,615,548.13 | 95.90313 | 3,619,141.07 95.998437 10.13
9/7/2023 3,200,000.00 2023/9/7 3,083,894.27 |  96.37170 | 3,134,914.78 97.966087 8.78
11/2/2023 3,100,000.00 2023/11/2 | 2,969,062.20 | 95.77620 | 3,017,989.81 97.354510 8.45
5/18/2023 2,080,000.00 2023/5/18 | 2,031,754.23 | 97.68049 | 2,067,855.84 99.416146 5.79
1/25/2024 2,050,000.00 2024/1/25 | 1,957,994.78 |  95.51194 | 1,975,754.13 96.378250 5.53
6/15/2023 1,900,000.00 2023/6/15 | 1,856,256.38 | 97.69770 | 1,882,155.87 99.060835 5.27
11/30/2023 1,712,000.00 2023/11/30 | 1,643,964.83 |  96.02598 | 1,661,299.89 97.038545 4.65
4/20/2023 1,600,000.00 2023/4/20 | 1,568,852.33| 98.05327 | 1,596,465.89 99.779118 4.47
10/5/2023 768,000.00 2023/10/5 738,396.61 |  96.14539 749,756.54 97.624549 2.10
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2023

(013 11 30 ) 21,386,126.53 2,855,689,476 8.08 1,079
(014 11 30 ) 11,237,986.27 1,500,608,307 9.78 1,306
(2015 11 30 ) 13,610,125.41 1,817,360,046 11.18 1,493
19,482,476.27 2,601,4 .81 1,31

(2016 11 30 ) 9,482,476 ,601,495,056 9.8 ,310
(017 11 30 ) 19,026,583.79 2,540,619,733 10.02 1,338
(2018 11 30 ) 9,604,627.65 1,282,505,930 8.25 1,102
(2019 11 30 ) 9,905,860.02 1,322,729,488 9.66 1,290
(2020 11 30 ) 7,324,017.98 977,976,121 8.62 1,151

10
(021 11 30 ) 3,490,741.30 466,118,686 9.03 1,206
11

(2022 11 30 ) 9,065,308.76 1,210,490,679 12.50 1,669
2022 3,739,476.83 499,332,341 11.70 1,562
4,290,497.41 572,910,119 11.78 1,573

5,150,139.18 687,698,085 12.13 1,620

5,650,596.84 754,524,196 11.59 1,548

8,094,295.21 1,080,831,239 12.25 1,636

8,735,330.70 1,166,428,708 12.92 1,725

10 9,420,278.39 1,257,889,773 13.12 1,752

11 9,065,308.76 1,210,490,679 12.50 1,669

12 10,015,475.56 1,337,366,452 12.53 1,673

2023 9,087,247.25 1,213,420,125 12.29 1,641
8,604,687.83 1,148,983,966 12.97 1,732
7,770,723.81 1,037,624,750 11.94 1,594
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1,603,717. 143,837,457 7.97 71

2013 1 %0 ) ,603,717.88 3,837,45 9 5

2014 1 3 ) 840,469.91 75,381,746 9.62 863

o5 11 30 ) 1,600,105.36 143,513,450 11.07 993

Q06 11 30 ) 4,131,630.14 370,565,907 9.60 861

o7 11 30 ) 2,549,737.03 228,685,914 9.60 861

4,779. 7 7.

2018 11 30 ) 884,779.90 9,355,909 68 689

4,02 ) 1,27 .67 77

2019 1 30 ) ,028,086.39 361,279,068 8.6 8

2020 1 30 ) 795,108.36 71,313,269 7.46 669
10

@21 1 30 ) 741,478.51 66,503,208 7.52 674
11

@22 11 30 ) 924,092.95 82,881,897 10.18 913

2022 871,624.83 78,176,031 9.60 861

875,258.54 78,501,938 9.64 865

900, 630.61 80,777,559 9.92 890

859,393.72 77,079,023 9.47 849

897,964.63 80,538,448 9.89 887

956,541.86 85,792,239 10.54 945

10 969,937.27 86,993,674 10.69 959

11 924,092.95 82,881,897 10.18 913

12 922,158.04 82,708,355 10.16 911

2023 901,550.22 80,860,039 9.93 891

949,464.02 85,157,428 10.46 938

873,629.93 78,355,868 9.63 864
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1 2 42

013 11 30 ) ,609,086,528 8,0

2014 11 30 ) 1,324,471,735 9,743

@015 1 %0 ) 2,053,149,317 11,053

016 1 %0 ) 4,631,462,053 9,558

Qo7 1 % ) 3,990,566,124 9,618
2,94 1 7,7

018 11 % ) ,945,093,193 ,753

445,332 7

09 11 %0 ) 3,445,332,056 8,80

@00 11 B ) 2,778,776,430 7,745

10 1,936,173,599 8,088

(2021 11 30 ) PR ’
11

@02 1 W ) 3,979,550, 051 11,129

2022 3,250,535,847 10,550

3,616,839,424 10,517

3,496,709,907 10,824

3,477,052,400 10,363

3,593,266,338 10,651

3,959,810,243 11,520

10 4,051,800,008 11,676

11 3,979,550,051 11,129

12 3,976,704,555 11,108

2023 3,870,695, 358 10,849

4,076,354,408 11,425

3,632,047,237 10,477

2023
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0.33 30

2012 12 2013 11 30
0.24 22

2013 12 2014 11 30
0.24 22

2014 12 2015 11 30
0.24 22

2015 12 2016 11 30
0.24 22

2016 12 2017 11 30
0.24 22

2017 12 2018 11 30
0.24 22

2018 12 2019 11 30
0.24 22

2019 12 2020 11 30

10

0.24 22

2020 12 2021 11 30

11

0.24 22

2021 12 2022 11 30
2022 19 0.02 2
2022 16 0.02 2
2022 15 0.02 2
2022 15 0.02 2
2022 15 0.02 2
2022 15 0.02 2
2022 10 17 0.02 2
2022 11 15 0.02 2
2022 12 15 0.02 2
2023 17 0.02 2
2023 15 0.02 2
2023 15 0.02 2
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)

21.16

13.44

13.53

19.39

13.59

12.06

10 4.43

11 37.60

( ) 100x
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896,714 5,034,416 2,656,552

(896,714) (5,034,416) (2,656,552)

51,608 1,558,998 1,149,162

(51,608) (1,558,998) (1,149,162)

1,243,682 1,175,305 1,217,539

(1,243,682) (1,175,305) (1,217,539)

1,153,757 385,834 1,985,462

(1,153,757) (385,834) (1,985,462)

597,304 683,017 1,899,750

(597,304) (683,017) (1,899,750)

108,436 843,924 1,164,262

(108,436) (843,924) (1,164,262)

0 138,413 1,025,849

©) (138,413) (1,025,849)

360,389 199,294 1,186,944

(360,389) (199,294) (1,186,944)
13,543 813,861 386,627

10 (13,543) (813,861) (386,627)
576,866 238,478 725,015

H (576,866) (238,478) (725,015)
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25,376 618,317 201,747
(25,376) (618,317) (201,747)
0 114,352 87,395
©0) (114,352) (87,395)
130,471 73,334 144,533
(130,471) (73,334) (144,533)
300,297 14,322 430,507
(300,297) (14,322) (430,507)
108 165,129 265,486
(108) (165,129) (265,486)
137 150,434 115,189
137) (150, 434) (115,189)
349,284 14 464,459
(349, 284) (14) (464,459)
0 357,871 106,588
©0) (357,871) (106,588)
0 7,917 98,671
©0) (7,917) (98,671)
0 7,917 90,754
©0) (7,917) (90,754)
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59,075 400,473 200,720
(59,075) (400,473) (200,720)
24,334 89,120 135,934
(24,334) (89,120) (135,934)
161,742 111,046 186,630
(161,742) (111,046) (186,630)
409,194 111,248 484,576
(409,194) (111,248) (484,576)
73,257 142,920 414,913
(73,257) (142,920) (414,913)
71,013 106,074 379,851
(71,013) (106,074) (379,851)
143,166 89,714 433,303
(143,166) (89,714) (433,303)
34,951 109,450 358,804
(34,951) (109,450) (358,804)

0 119,408 239,396
0) (119,408) (239,396)
213,808 95,630 357,574
(213,808) (95,630) (357,574)
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10

100 0.01 10 0.001
100 0.01 10 0.001
10,000 0.001

4.40

DIAMDeal ing@bnymel lon.com

4.0
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100 0.01 10 0.001
0.01 10 0.001
0.001
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14
14

0.001 0.001
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2025 11 28

11 30
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®

W)

G)CINA
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90

90

90

90

90
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131

23 103

133.53
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Aspect
2022 11 30

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
$ 28,815,960 3,847,795 $ 13,798,194 1,842,473
11,426,738 1,525,812 9,736,280 1,300,085
4,135,702 552,240 882,156 117,794
928,918 124,038 - -
123 16 123 16
$ 45,307,441 6,049,903 $ 24,416,753 3,260,369
$ 2,311,842 308,700 $ 3,072,031 410,208
2,969,062 396,459 - -
288,832 38,568 - -
64,332 8,590 63,558 8,487
59,678 7,969 37,983 5,072
45,733 6,107 30,358 4,054
39,576 5,285 25,189 3,363
14,874 1,986 14,874 1,986
2,985 399 4,073 544
2,560 342 1,942 259
1,256 168 800 107
43,665 5,831 30,448 4,066
5,844,395 780,402 3,281,256 438,146
39,463,046 5,269,501 21,135,497 2,822,223
$ 45,307,441 6,049,903 $ 24,416,753 3,260,369

Aspect
2023 17
2023 17
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Aspect
2022 11 30

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
$ 336,396 44,919 $ 18,007 2,416
6,336,865 846,162 2,626,203 350,677
6,673,261 891,081 2,644,300 353,003
1,960,786 261,824 280,080 37,399
449,392 60,007 410,801 54,854
295,403 39,445 294,843 39,370
186,116 24,852 220,040 29,382
120,534 16,095 92,593 12,364
89,000 11,884 89,000 11,884
54,981 7,342 96,462 12,881
20,499 2,737 20,499 2,737
15,764 2,105 14,981 2,000
5,908 789 5,896 787
45,671 6,098 80,100 10,696
3,244,054 433,179 1,605,295 214,355
3,429,207 457,902 1,039,005 138,738
(15,377) (2,053) (19,350) (2,584)
$ 3,413,830 455,849 $ 1,019,655 136,155
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Aspect
2022 11 30
2022 11 30 2021 11 30
$ 21,135,497 2,822,223 $ 37,446,078 5,000,175
25,214,560 3,366,900 130,391 17,411

(10,300, 841) (1,375,471)  (17,460,627) (2,331,518)

3,413,830 455,849 1,019,655 136,155

$ 39,463,046 5,269,501 $ 21,135,497 2,822,223
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Aspect
2022 11 30

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
$ 3,413,830 455,849 $ 1,019,655 136,155
(336,396) (44,919) (18,097) (2,416)
15,377 2,053 19,350 2,584
3,092,811 412,983 1,020,908 136,322
(15,017,766) (2,005,322) 12,057,611 1,610,053
(1,690,458) (225,727) 2,572,761 343,541
- - 1,308 175
(760,189) (101,508) (1,622,665) (216,674)
2,969,062 396,459 - -
65,434 8,737 (43,332) (5,786)
(11,341,106) (1,514,378) 13,986,591 1,867,629
336,396 44,919 18,097 2,416
(11,004,710) (1,469,459) 14,004,688 1,870,046
24,285,642 3,242,862 3,034,554 405,204
(10,012,009) (1,336,904) (17,460,627) (2,331,518)
(15,377) (2,053) (19,350) (2,584)
14,258,256 1,903,905 (14,445 ,423) (1,928,897)
3,253,546 434,446 (440,735) (58,851)
882,156 117,794 1,322,891 176,646
$ 4,135,702 552,240 $ 882,156 117,794
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10

2021 12

Aspect
2022 11 30
2011 29
Aspect
2012 16 2011
1107 25

2012
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2021 12

2021 12

2021 12
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2022 11 30

2022 11 30
(2021 11 30 )
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2022 11 30
$ 26,436,266 66.99
$ 26,436,266 66.99
$ 1,505,466 3.81
874,228 2.22
$ 2,379,694 6.03
$ 28,815,960 73.02
2022 11 30
$ (1,235,699) (3.13)
(1,076,143) (2.73)
$ (2,311,842) (5.86)

$ (2,311,842) (5.86)
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2021 11 30
$ 10,956,486 51.84

$ 10,956,486 51.84

$ 2,155,141 10.20

686,567 3.25

$ 2,841,708 13.45

$ 13,798,194 65.29

2021 11 30

$ (1,497,530) (7-09)

(1,574,501) (7.45)

$ (3,072,031) (14.54)

$ (3,072,031) (14.54)

2021 12 2020 12
2022 11 30 2021 11 30

$ 6,068,650 $ 3,248,177
268,215 (621,974)

$ 6,336,865 $ 2,626,203
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2022 11 30

$ (342,906) $ (5,826)

(36,502) 191,526

(45,313,418) (113,508)

1,135,066 52,547

435,825 (137,751)

(343,961) (172,045)

(76,460) (8,150)

(1,251,843) (26,932)

(592,115) 18,224

$ (46,386,314) $ (201,915)
2021 11 30

$ (1,120,695) $ 15,505

3,093,474 (194,843)

(26,893,030) (344,943)

2,822,171 (30,213)

13,038,302 (389,354)

1,692,314 101,330

832,380 (34,305)

631,648 (6,068)

(13,045) (5,043)

$ (5,916,481) $ (887,934)
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2022 11 30
932,152 619,058 2022 12 30 14,647
2,800,750 20,103 2022 12 196
4,021,173,784 28,593,831 2022 12 30 678,553
1,300,000 856,629 2022 12 21 26,722
1,075,059 200,000 2022 12 21 5,919
403,692 300,000 2022 12 21 483
839,152 875,000 2022 12 21 15,488
1,615,477,263 1,750,000 2022 12 21 56,787
8,981,693 1,250,000 2022 12 21 25,652
5,534,448,825 1,100,000 2022 12 21 41,746
33,073,834 1,350,000 2022 12 21 4,796
1,125,000 1,103,248 2022 12 21 2,897
1,300,000 533,775,806 2022 12 21 8,292
1,300,000 13,318,493 2022 12 21 1,883
1,500,000 1,536,682 2022 12 21 28,167
125,000 3,050,863 2022 12 21 49
200,000 28,657,578 2022 12 21 309
350,000 301,896 2022 12 21 890
5,600,000 60,727,112 2022 12 21 49,307
6,725,451 7,700,000 2022 12 21 81,453
800,000 928,264 2022 12 21 36,947
2,357,065,002 150,000 2022 12 21 434
5,348,203 1,550,000 2022 12 21 17,817
57,435,450 700,000 2022 12 21 5,349
238,936,495 1,700,000 2022 12 21 37,046
598,336,743 4,100,000 2022 12 21 72,598
2,263,157,670 1,700,000 2022 12 21 28,083
65,152,826 3,325,000 2022 12 21 37,884
10,350,044 1,000,000 2022 12 21 9,234
3,000,000 1,790,223 2022 12 21 100,181
674,587 175,000 2022 12 21 557
22,942,561 400,000 2022 12 21 6,412
30,701,825 6,500,000 2022 12 21 25,838
10,985,827 1,000,000 2022 12 21 4,712
1,386,379 1,000,000 2022 12 21 18,215
14,241,111 400,000 2022 12 21 4,836
23,924,140 750,000 2022 12 21 25,600
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100,000 94,000 2022 12 21 249
100,000 702,803 2022 12 21 182
100,000 1,554,954,312 2022 12 21 759
150,000 12,174,403 2022 12 21 489
200,000 178,201,493 2022 12 21 695
250,000 7,671,869 2022 12 21 1,285
400,000 2,063,755 2022 12 21 4,705
50,000 850,645 2022 12 21 585
500,000 669,334 2022 12 21 1,790
12,239,945 700,000 2022 12 21 11,006
600,000 404,585 2023 18 3,582
400,000 481,635 2023 18 1,395
49,146,625 600,000 2023 18 2,765

1,505,466
40,223 5,599,000 2022 12 30 (535)
6,203,473 1,200,000 2022 12 21 (11,775)
1,064,691 800,000 2022 12 21 (7,511)
293,407 300,000 2022 12 21 (1,613)
869,475 925,000 2022 12 21 (2,333)
44,550,675 50,000 2022 12 21 (174)
962,108,001 200,000 2022 12 21 (1,519)
1,350,000 1,178,805 2022 12 21 (13,879)
100,000 104,623 2022 12 21 (300)
200,000 942,491 2022 12 21 (311)
300,000 124,420,778 2022 12 21 (1,222)
4,075,000 4,022,958 2022 12 21 (17,894)
600,000 86,597,816 2022 12 21 (3,618)
750,000 7,769,583 2022 12 21 (7,642)
875,000 21,409,405 2022 12 21 (1,940)
651,805,209 1,600,000 2022 12 21 (23,209)
5,448,927,440 350,000 2022 12 21 (2,236)
511,324 150,000 2022 12 21 (106)
12,202,468 150,000 2022 12 21 (145)
65,399,685 50,000 2022 12 21 (63)
484,225 25,000 2022 12 21 @)
512,171 50,000 2022 12 21 (80)
287,917 75,000 2022 12 21 (72)
235,171 50,000 2022 12 21 (22)
21,684,261 2,000,000 2022 12 21 (17,991)
3,061,830 100,000 2022 12 21 (738)
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1,000,000 1,396,116 2022 12 21 (25,366)
1,000,000 31,283,369 2022 12 21 (14,180)
1,100,000 21,579,152 2022 12 21 (13,815)
1,150,000 20,490,484 2022 12 21 (40,273)
1,400,000 51,753,776 2022 12 21 (71,220)
1,550,000 2,145,247,510 2022 12 21 (88,050)
1,800,000 28,295,500,482 2022 12 21 (5,891)
2,450,000 17,647,408 2022 12 21 (56,426)
2,500,000 364,515,937 2022 12 21 (149,997)
3,110,422 3,100,000 2022 12 21 (123,600)
3,300,000 4,450,354 2022 12 21 (12,563)
450,000 409,473,735 2022 12 21 (7,965)
5,000,000 17,627,588 2022 12 21 (167,499)
5,500,000 5,399,970 2022 12 21 (230,321)
50,000 249,867,000 2022 12 21 (1,547)
500,000 1,982,102 2022 12 21 (15,829)
60,945 100,000 2022 12 21 (2,068)
700,000 57,236,825 2022 12 21 (2,910)
700,000 40,805,528 2022 12 21 (22,843)
750,000 3,992,655 2022 12 21 (14,761)
851,403 1,300,000 2022 12 21 (31,948)
947,260 800,000 2022 12 21 (17,951)
124,489,502 300,000 2023 18 (1,741)

$ (1,235,699)
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2021

46,391

2,069,385,868

712,518
4,578,828
553,801
41,799,280
28,557,029
1,276,708
100,000
2,150,000
2,300,000
550,000
6,300,000
800,000
975,000
2,084,196
220,483,545
10,803,945,073
5,765,976
77,305,320
130,238,701
148,044,751
119,316,968
17,539,962
1,644,914
45,838,073
116,705
5,067,794
41,948,213
1,025,000
1,075,000
1,200,000
1,575,000
1,925,000
2,200,000
2,325,000
2,600,000

11 30

64,207

18,035,250

125,000
4,300,000
600,000
50,000
4,400,000
50,000
113,232
21,315,127
824,780,445
13,972,744
63,752,320
676,903
4,468,646
2,425,000
600,000
750,000
1,800,000
1,025,000
1,000,000
1,300,000
100,000
1,700,000
400,000
900,000
25,000
150,000
1,500,000
3,184,615
5,938,490
972,763,810
32,884,276
2,273,065,435
8,403,675,138
3,142,338
2,371,860
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2021

2021

2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021
2021

12

12

12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12
12

30

30

15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15
15

$ 655

273,136

997
115,490
3,170
430
79,748
23

59
84,812
43,571
2,898
74,432
7,131
19,842
21,335
5,171
3,065
26,816
2,297
18,907
9,294
585
8,617
4,099
8,855
7

409
8,603
16,029
24,872
26,389
47,214
8,797
100,227
24,336
16,699
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3,200,000 104,613,759 2021 12 15 95,135
3,600,000 396,840,477 2021 12 15 90,380
3,762,267 5,350,000 2021 12 15 113,613
300,000 21,734,443 2021 12 15 8,579
4,600,000 5,797,358 2021 12 15 64,593
4,800,000 132,625,971 2021 12 15 30,311
450,000 1,806,159 2021 12 15 6,289
450,000 22,627,808 2021 12 15 1,347
5,558,785 4,100,000 2021 12 15 112,347
5,875,982 8,000,000 2021 12 15 179,248
750,000 10,708,208,928 2021 12 15 3,608
750,000 55,996,455 2021 12 15 5,873
8,016,948 6,800,000 2021 12 15 313,150
900,000 13,726,753 2021 12 15 40,606
806,817 50,000 2021 12 15 512
44,946,085 350,000 2022 16 419
350,000 5,070,660,000 2022 16 114

2,155,141
857,088 621,133 2021 12 30 (10,612)
6,671 766,714 2021 12 30 (112)
3,200,000 2,383,348 2021 12 15 (104,654)
5,708,634 1,075,000 2021 12 15 (65,519)
2,238,572 1,800,000 2021 12 15 (48,714)
365,511 400,000 2021 12 15 (1,905)
2,208,856,280 2,800,000 2021 12 15 (135,079)
3,430,293,850 900,000 2021 12 15 (42,894)
43,314,074 1,700,000 2021 12 15 (3,381)
1,000,000 130,062,598 2021 12 15 (17,350)
150,000 1,543,376 2021 12 15 (290)
175,000 821,756 2021 12 15 (1,219)
2,500,000 2,915,103 2021 12 15 (82,824)
200,000 2,051,548 2021 12 15 (702)
400,000 342,660 2021 12 15 (2,025)
600,000 644,154 2021 12 15 (21,830)
900,000 23,074,116 2021 12 15 (4,563)
1,700,000 2,342,108 2021 12 15 (83,829)
2,645,799 3,125,000 2021 12 15 (25,671)
1,227,926,075 3,500,000 2021 12 15 (150,719)
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7,169,394,415 500,000 2021 12 15 73)
143,317,004 1,925,000 2021 12 15 (20,485)
88,161,290 800,000 2021 12 15 (20,310)
931,704,341 800,000 2021 12 15 (14,569)
41,596,460 2,050,000 2021 12 15 (117,450)
17,653,205 1,750,000 2021 12 15 (35,538)
6,600,000 4,693,203 2021 12 15 (192,060)
401,628 100,000 2021 12 15 (1,334)
5,037,124 100,000 2021 12 15 (126)
15,748,402 3,425,000 2021 12 15 (57,358)
170,631,779 2,300,000 2021 12 15 (12,121)
17,055,205 1,700,000 2021 12 15 (36,459)
1,346,052 1,000,000 2021 12 15 (14,488)
43,203,982 1,300,000 2021 12 15 (17,735)
29,083,862 1,050,000 2021 12 15 (4,044)
1,325,000 1,579,078,577 2021 12 15 (6,170)
1,700,000 193,950, 898 2021 12 15 (15,284)
100,000 402,030,850 2021 12 15 (453)
100,000 7,597,003 2021 12 15 (1,863)
100,000 3,384,768 2021 12 15 (458)
2,750,000 17,680,064 2021 12 15 (23,476)
200,000 256,281 2021 12 15 (494)
25,000 141,411 2021 12 15 (6)
275,000 376,353 2021 12 15 (547)
3,100,000 2,875,645 2021 12 15 (31,995)
350,000 1,444,051 2021 12 15 (4,754)
350,000 17,759,400 2021 12 15 (2,125)
350,000 9,734,308 2021 12 15 79)
374,394 550,000 2021 12 15 (702)
400,000 335,856,835 2021 12 15 (5,202)
50,000 3,763,396 2021 12 15 (11)
50,000 808,781 2021 12 15 (635)
505,034 7,265,130,581 2021 12 15 (1,366)
575,000 12,514,649 2021 12 15 (6,424)
70,885 100,000 2021 12 15 (324)
775,000 2,480,531 2021 12 15 (10,899)
901,278 800,000 2021 12 15 (5,051)
5,894,380 400,000 2021 12 15 (30,970)

(1,497,530)
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2022 11 30 2021 11 30
2022 11 30
() ® @)

$ 693,396 $ (535) $ - $ 692,861

425,174 (417,462) - 7,712

386,896 (386,896) - -

874,228 (874,228) - _

4,418,966 (2,969,062) - 1,449,904

1,750,690 - - 1,750,690

1,773,989 (430,806) - 1,343,183

3,483,093 (201,915) - 3,281,178

$ 13,806,432 $ (5,280,904) $ - $8,525,528

) @ ©)

$ 817,702 $ (386,896)  $ (430,806) $ -

535 (535) - -

417,462 (417,462) - -

1,076,143 (874,228) (201,915) -

2,969,062 (2,969,062) - -

$ 5,280,904 $ (4,648,183) $(632,721) $ -
(€H)
)
3)
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2021 11 30
@ @ @

$ 1,199,033 $(667,948) $ - $ 531,085

273,791 (10,724) - 263,067

682,317 (682,317) - _

686,567 (686,567) - -

1,118,659 - - 1,118,659

3,653,097 - - 3,653,097

1,657,372 (136,541) - 1,520,831

3,307,152 (887,934) - 2,419,218

$ 12,577,988  $(3,072,031) $ - $9,505,957

(@) @) ®

$ 667,948 $ (667,948) $ S }

10,724 (10,724) - }

818,858 (682,317) (136,541) -

1,574,501 (686,567) (887,934) -

$ 3,072,031  $ (2,047,556)  $(1,024,475) $ -
(€H)
@)
©)

2011 29
0.01 3,750
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2012 27
0.05

2012 27

2012 27

0.08

2012 27

2012 27
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2011 29

3,750

0.95

250
250 500 0.06 500
89,000

0.63
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0.04



2012

27
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1.5

20

3.25

0.02

2022 11 30 2021 11 30

$ (15,377) $ (19, 350)

$ (15,377) $ (19,350)
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10.00
10.00
10,000
2012 16
100 0.01
10 0.001
100 0.01 10 0.001
10,000 0.001
2022 11 30
386,627 98,671 239,396 724,694
651,180 - 213,808 864,988
(238,479) (7,917) (95,630) (342,026)
799,328 90,754 357,574 1,247,656

$ 12.50 AU$ 10.18 \ 11,129.30
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2021 11 30

1,186,944 106,588 358,804 1,652,336
13,544 - - 13,544
(813,861) (7,917) (119,408) (941,186)
386,627 98,671 239,396 724,694
$ 9.03 AU$ 7.51 \  8,087.74

2022 11 30 2021 11 30
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11 30

2022 11 30

2022 11 30
10
2,670,603 2021 1,161,410 2022 11 30
10
(2,670,603) 2021 (1,161,410)
11 30

11 30

2022 11 30 (45,313,418)

10

88/231



2021 11 30
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10

$ (342,906) 34,291
(36,502) 3,650
1,135,066 113,507
435,825 43,583
(343,961) 34,396
(76.,460) 7,646
(1,251,843) 125,184
(592,115) 59,212

$ (1,072,896)

(26,893,030)
10
10

$ (1,120,695) 112,070
3,003,474 309,347
2,822,171 282,217
13,038,302 1,303,830
1,692,314 169,231
832,380 83,238
631,648 63,165
(13,045) 1,305

$ 20,976,549

11 30
11 30
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2022 11 30

4,377 335,365 3,150 949 57,345 78,282 50,652

(16,257)  (71,370)  (56,042)  (20,221) (42,852)  (5,290)  (3,575)

2021 11 30
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4,517 272,732 292,698

(129,902)  (13,561) (141,466)

2022 11 30
10 10 10
438 33,537 315
10 10 10

(1,626)  (7,137)  (5,604)

2021 11 30

10 10 10

452 27,273 29,270

10 10 10

(12,990)  (1,356)  (14,147)
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845 23,456 15,075

(49,916)  (56,306)  (13,365)  (4,231)  (3,228)

10 10 10 10
95 5,734 7,828 5,065
10 10 10 10
(2,022)  (4,285) (529) (358)
10 10 10
85 2,346 1,508
10 10 10 10 10
(4,992)  (5,631)  (1,337) (423) (323)
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2022 11 30
48,175 2021 488,354
2022 11 30
10
2022 11 30 10

$ (1,644) $ 40,817

(15,912) 23,408

(17,801) 271,780

(16,610) 1,511

(216,917) 401,691

49,343 119,936

(30,592) 133,060

38,680 128,868

2,905 264

68,464 6,224

(17,880) 1,625

69,289 6,299

3,395 308

25,505 2,319

36,028 3,274

(95,733) 156,485

20,391 48,303

(6,934) 140,694

(149,788) 344,979

5,548 60,556

(112,951) 91,295

(60,030) 13,997

24,062 227,406

98,113 182,739

(15,344) 26,534

(16,431) 31,643

(7,151) 715

(66,384) 106,638

11,967 38,804

(28,682) 52,867

$ (423,094)
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2022 11 30 10
$ 8,352 $ 835
47,426 4,743
10,166 1,017
124,242 12,424
(21,473) 2,147
(60,575) 6,057
3,243 324
(89,248) 8,925
191 19
(6.,980) 698
(2,545) 255
3,673 367
(1,486) 149
(63,161) 6,316
$ (48,175)
2021 11 30
10
2021 11 30 10
$ 74,270 $ 348,925
(39, 656) 6,034
15,385 298,461
93,660 8,514
(14,031) 471,403
(113,462) 113,654
56,272 170,627
56,880 134,311
(5,023) 457
770 70
(101,977) 9,271
1,976 180
57,601 5,236
(38,728) 3,520
37,271 3,389
225,334 566,456
28,518 318,816
5,148 34,988
31,946 3,195
(12,326) 213,767
64,080 313,592
(11,357) 236,136

(76,660) 17,666
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(79,149) 47,739
4,300 29,569
7,951 20,795
(5,405) 189,460
9,301 159,070
77,351 177,265
34,791 256,522
9,513 49,050
$ 394,544
2021 11 30 10

$ (53,964) $ 5,396
(102,237) 10,224
(40,714) 4,071
(125, 369) 12,537
(54,416) 5,442
8,369 837
(27,141) 2,714
(22,052) 2,205
(2,505) 251
4,555 456
(10,798) 1,080
(12,423) 1,242
(31,656) 3,166
(18,003) 1,800

$ (488,354)

2022 11 30 o
26,980,000 2022-2023
2021 11 30 o
10,957,000 2021-2022
2022 11 30 (45,313,418) 2021 11 30

26,893,030

94/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 2021 11 30
10
2022 11 30

26,436,266 66.99
2021 11 30

10,956,486 51.84
2022 11 30

2021 11
2022 11 30
2021 11 30

1970
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2021 11 30

12

2022 11 30

2022 11 30 12
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$ (2,012,864) $

(271,267) $ (27,711) $ (2,311,842)

2021 11 30
$ (2,602,051) $ (469,090) $  (890) $ (3,072,031)
13
2022 11 30
$ 26,436,266 $ $ $ 26,436,266
1,505,466 1,505,466
874,228 874,228
$ 27,310,494 $ 1,505,466 $ $ 28,815,960
$ $ (1,235,699) $ $ (1,235,699)
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(1,076,143) (1,076,143)
$ (1,076,143) $ (1,235,699) $ $ (2,311,842)
2021 11 30

$ 10,956,486 $ $ $ 10,956,486

2,155,141 2,155,141

686,567 686,567

$ 11,643,053 $ 2,155,141 $ $ 13,798,194

$ $ (1,497,530) $ $  (1,497,530)

(1,574,501) (1,574,501)

$ (1,574,501) $ (1,497,530) $ $ (3,072,031)
11 30
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12

2022 12

2,837,860

2023

17
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2,922,112
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Aspect
2022 11 30
2,800,750 20,103 2022 12 196
1,300,000 856,629 2022 12 21 26,722
1,075,059 200,000 2022 12 21 5,919
403,692 300,000 2022 12 21 483
839,152 875,000 2022 12 21 15,488
1,615,477,263 1,750,000 2022 12 21 56,787
8,981,693 1,250,000 2022 12 21 25,652
5,534,448,825 1,100,000 2022 12 21 41,746
33,073,834 1,350,000 2022 12 21 4,796
1,125,000 1,103,248 2022 12 21 2,897
1,300,000 533,775,806 2022 12 21 8,292
1,300,000 13,318,493 2022 12 21 1,883
1,500,000 1,536,682 2022 12 21 28,167
125,000 3,050,863 2022 12 21 49
200,000 28,657,578 2022 12 21 309
350,000 301,896 2022 12 21 890
5,600,000 60,727,112 2022 12 21 49,307
6,725,451 7,700,000 2022 12 21 81,453
800,000 928,264 2022 12 21 36,947
2,357,065,002 150,000 2022 12 21 434
5,348,203 1,550,000 2022 12 21 17,817
57,435,450 700,000 2022 12 21 5,349
238,936,495 1,700,000 2022 12 21 37,046
598,336,743 4,100,000 2022 12 21 72,598
2,263,157,670 1,700,000 2022 12 21 28,083
65,152,826 3,325,000 2022 12 21 37,884
10,350,044 1,000,000 2022 12 21 9,234
3,000,000 1,790,223 2022 12 21 100,181
674,587 175,000 2022 12 21 557
22,942,561 400,000 2022 12 21 6,412
30,701,825 6,500,000 2022 12 21 25,838
10,985,827 1,000,000 2022 12 21 4,712
1,386,379 1,000,000 2022 12 21 18,215
14,241,111 400,000 2022 12 21 4,836
23,924,140 750,000 2022 12 21 25,600
100,000 94,000 2022 12 21 249
100,000 702,803 2022 12 21 182
100,000 1,554,954,312 2022 12 21 759
150,000 12,174,403 2022 12 21 489
200,000 178,201,493 2022 12 21 695
250,000 7,671,869 2022 12 21 1,285
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400,000 2,063,755 2022 12 21 4,705
50,000 850,645 2022 12 21 585
500,000 669,334 2022 12 21 1,790
12,239,945 700,000 2022 12 21 11,006
932,152 619,058 2022 12 30 14,647
4,021,173,784 28,593,831 2022 12 30 678,553
600,000 404,585 2023 18 3,582
400,000 481,635 2023 18 1,395
49,146,625 600,000 2023 18 2,765

$ 1,505,466
6,203,473 1,200,000 2022 12 21 $ (11,775)
1,064,691 800,000 2022 12 21 (7,511)
293,407 300,000 2022 12 21 (1,613)
869,475 925,000 2022 12 21 (2,333)
44,550,675 50,000 2022 12 21 (174)
962,108,001 200,000 2022 12 21 (1,519)
1,350,000 1,178,805 2022 12 21 (13,879)
100,000 104,623 2022 12 21 (300)
200,000 942,491 2022 12 21 (311)
300,000 124,420,778 2022 12 21 (1,222)
4,075,000 4,022,958 2022 12 21 (17,894)
600,000 86,597,816 2022 12 21 (3,618)
750,000 7,769,583 2022 12 21 (7,642)
875,000 21,409,405 2022 12 21 (1,940)
651,805,209 1,600,000 2022 12 21 (23,209)
5,448,927,440 350,000 2022 12 21 (2,236)
511,324 150,000 2022 12 21 (106)
12,202,468 150,000 2022 12 21 (145)
65,399,685 50,000 2022 12 21 (63)
484,225 25,000 2022 12 21 @
512,171 50,000 2022 12 21 (80)
287,917 75,000 2022 12 21 (72)
235,171 50,000 2022 12 21 (22)
21,684,261 2,000,000 2022 12 21 (17,991)
3,061,830 100,000 2022 12 21 (738)
1,000,000 1,396,116 2022 12 21 (25,366)
1,000,000 31,283,369 2022 12 21 (14,180)
1,100,000 21,579,152 2022 12 21 (13,815)
1,150,000 20,490,484 2022 12 21 (40,273)
1,400,000 51,753,776 2022 12 21 (71,220)
1,550,000 2,145,247,510 2022 12 21 (88,050)
1,800,000 28,295,500,482 2022 12 21 (5.891)
2,450,000 17,647,408 2022 12 21 (56,426)
2,500,000 364,515,937 2022 12 21 (149,997)
3,110,422 3,100,000 2022 12 21 (123,600)
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3,300,000 4,450,354 2022 12 21 (12,563)
450,000 409,473,735 2022 12 21 (7,965)
5,000,000 17,627,588 2022 12 21 (167,499)
5,500,000 5,399,970 2022 12 21 (230,321)
50,000 249,867,000 2022 12 21 (1,547)
500,000 1,982,102 2022 12 21 (15,829)
60,945 100,000 2022 12 21 (2,068)
700,000 57,236,825 2022 12 21 (2,910)
700,000 40,805,528 2022 12 21 (22,843)
750,000 3,992,655 2022 12 21 (14,761)
851,403 1,300,000 2022 12 21 (31,948)
947,260 800,000 2022 12 21 (17,951)
40,223 5,599,000 2022 12 30 (535)
124,489,502 300,000 2023 18 (1,741)
$ (1,235,699)

12/01/2022 3,100,000 3,100,000 3,100,000 -

01/12/2023 3,412,000 3,398,927 3,396,448 (2,479)

02/16/2023 3,050,000 3,028,087 3,023,159 (4,928)

03/23/2023 1,070,000 1,064,120 1,055,960 (8,160)

04/20/2023 2,900,000 2,867,469 2,850,882 (16,587)

05/18/2023 2,080,000 2,045,710 2,036,470 (9,240)

06/15/2023 2,700,000 2,646,233 2,635,941 (10,292)

09/07/2023 3,200,000 3,001,721 3,089,920 (1,801)

10/05/2023 2,368,000 2,280,545 2,277,501 (3,044)

11/02/2023 3,100,000 2,969,062 2,969,985 923

26,491,874 26,436,266 $ (55,608)
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SOFR 2023 12 (5) $ 2,925

SOFR 2023 (5) 5,350

SOFR 2023 [C)) 7,112

SOFR 2024 [C)) 712

SOFR 2023 (5) 5,725

90 2024 @ 658
90 2024 @ 641
10 2022 12 47 55,442

2023 [C)) 4,836

2023 ©)) 3,525

2023 ®) 400

CAC40 2022 12 16 10,621
WCE 2023 ®) 1,010

CBOE VIX 2022 12 (5) 11,440
CBOE VIX 2023 @ 11,000
ICE 2023 10 4,846

ICE 2023 6 1,893

DAX 2022 12 1 625

MINI e CBOT 2022 12 1 3,815

2000  Mini 2022 12 11 19,095

50 2022 12 20 6,237

2022 12 8 19,409

2022 12 8 13,557

- 2022 12 (23) 4,868

FTSE  A50 2022 12 65 35,560
FTSE 2022 12 ) 191
FTSE 2022 12 31 15,860
FTSE 2022 12 21 123,039
RBOB 2023 9 37,183
RBOB 2023 3 10,349
100 2023 C)) 620
ICE SONIA 2024 12 @ 2,381
ICE SONIA 2023 ) 2,848
ICE SONIA 2024 ) 1,341
10 OSE 2022 12 @ 6,378

KC HRW 2023 0 5,838
3 2022 12 5 1,456

2023 0 28,125
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EURO 2023 (5) 1,900

2022 12 1 1,255

225 CME 2022 12 1 75

2023 1 3,450

2023 6 23,295

EURO 2023 @ 3,332

S P 400 E  MINI 2 10,940
S&pP 60 2022 12 12 65,935
SET50 2022 12 73 3,673
2023 1 3,005

2023 7 14,700

2023 15 11,298

WORLD 2023 36 38,349

WORLD 2023 12 9,262

SMI 2022 12 11 10,166

2022 12 5 1,015

(CBT 2023 4 2,125

CBT 2023 (10) 17,950

CBT 2023 ) 6,812

ICE 2023 4 5,560

WT1 2023 ) 5,400
WT1 2023 (19) 167,820
874,228

SOFR 2024 12 @ (937)

SOFR 2024 ®) (2.862)

SOFR 2025 @ (2.,375)

SOFR 2024 @ (1,563)
EURIBOR 2023 12 [C)) (1,145)

EURIBOR 2024 12 ) (2.421)

EURIBOR 2023 ) (390)

EURIBOR 2024 ®) (1,380)

EURIBOR 2024 ®) (1,471)

EURIBOR 2025 ) (2.,681)

EURIBOR 2023 [C)) (846)

EURIBOR 2024 ) (2,004)

90 2023 12 @ (1,197)
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90 2023 @ $ (1,510)
90 2023 ) (951)
90 2024 @ (263)
2022 12 ) (2,603)

2022 12 (5) (1,310)

2023 12 ) (130)

2024 @ (1,097)

2024 @ (744)

BIST30 2022 12 (18) (1,486)
2023 1 (9,950)

2023 1 (8,010)

2022 12 ) (1,450)

10 2023 (48) (26,309)

CATTLE FEEDER 2023 ) (2,962)
2022 12 @ (1,437)

2023 (11) (18,700)

2023 (6) (9,770)

10tn 2023 @ (1,000)

10tn 2023 ) (340)

c 2023 ) (1,744)

c 2023 (5) (5.869)

c 2023 ®) (7.556)

2023 (5) (11,475)

2023 9 (8.638)

2023 10 (11,850)

No. 2023 ) (8,150)
2022 12 @ (4,194)

bobl 2022 12 (13) (11,298)

Euro BTP 2022 12 2 (604)
BuxI30 BND 2022 12 @ (14,661)

FTSE100 2022 12 (19) (25,303)
FTSE 40 2022 12 (12) (62,425)
2022 12 0 (27,578)

2022 12 (12) (32,997)

ICE SONIA 2023 12 ) (2.863)
ICE SONIA 2023 ®) (2,878)
ICE SONIA 2024 ) (859)

ICE SONIA 2023 (6) (1,160)
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ICE SONIA 2024 )
ICE SONIA 2025 @
10 2022 12 (28)

200 2022 12 (13)
2023 4

2023 4

2023 @

2023 (12)

2023 ®)

LME 2023 15 (5)
LME 2022 12 21 -
LME 2023 15 @
LME 2022 12 21 -
LME 2023 15 -
LME 2022 12 21 -
LME 2023 15 -
LME 2022 12 21 -
LME 2023 15 -
LME 2022 12 21 -
MSCI EAFE 2022 12 ©))
MSCI Emg Mkt 2022 12 (24)
MSCI 2022 12 (19)
100 E-MINI 2022 12 ®)

2023 @

2023 @

225 SGX 2022 12 5

NY ULSD 2023 2
NY ULSD 2023 5
30 OMX 2022 12 (85)

S&P500 E-MINI 2022 12 )
SGX 62 2023 @
SGX NIFTY 50 2022 12 (32)
Euro BTP 2022 12 (13)
2023 ®)

SP1200 2022 12 (25)

10 (CBT 2023 (66)

CBT 2023 (6)

CBT 2023 @
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(588)
(1,130)
(81,662)
(9,042)
(4,730)
(6,630)
(4,380)
(6,190)
(2,040)
(20,882)
(10,058)
(6,226)
(19,891)
(7.878)
(11,940)
(32,571)
(900)
(7,555)
(54,145)
(58,530)
(93,935)
(2,545)
(44,615)
(3,700)
(2,200)
(4,149)
(2,159)
(31,332)
(6,980)
(14,275)
(671)
(37,349)
(17,774)
(4,000)
(43,158)
(47,859)
(2,844)
(7.766)
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ULTRA CBT 2023 (5) $ (7.664)
VSTOXX 2022 12 @ (68)
SAF 2023 1 (736)

$ (1,076,143)
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(Expressed in United States dollars)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Motes 3, 4 and %)

Margin accounts

Cash and cash equivalents {MNotes 2 and 9)
Subscription receivable

Other assels

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial habilities st Gair valie through profit of loss (MNotes 3, 4 and 9)

Due to brokers
Redemption payabhe

Professional fee pay able

Agent and distributor fee payable (Note &)

Sub-investment manager management fee pavable (Note &)
Investment management fee payable (Note &)
Administration fee pavable (Note &)

Trustee foe payable (Mot &)

Manager Fee payable (Note &)

Custody fee payable (MNote 6)

Other acorued exponses

Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to Unithaelder)

Met assetz attributable to Unitholder

Total liahilities

30 Movember 30 Mavember
2002 2021

5 IRBIS080 £ 13,798, 194

11426738 9.736,280

4,135,702 852,156

QIR 918 -

125 123

£ 45307441 24,416,753

£ 2311842 % 3072081

2,060 (62 =

286 832 -

61,332 63,558

50678 37,983

45,733 30,358

30576 25,189

14.574 14,874

2 985 4,073

2 880 1,942

1.256 BOO

43 665 30,448

5844 305 3,281,256

39463 046 21,135,497

£ 45307441 % 24.415.753

Approved for issuance on behalf of FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trest Company (Cayman) Limited, not in
itg individual capacity but selely as Trustee to DIAM Cavman Trust — Aspect Managed Futures Fused by

BonnjeCuthbert

deony Matenrm)

Date: 17 April 2023

Approved for auance on behalf of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid., not in itz individual capacity but

solely as Manager to
Karla Boddden

DIAM Cayman Trest by:

Sinead Wagner

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these Mmancial dalemesils,

-4
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{Expressed in United States dollars)

Year ended Wear ended
30 Novanber 30 November
2022 2021
Income
Initerest ineome 5 336,39 5 18.087
et changes in fair value on financial assets and finamcial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 3) 6,336,865 2626203
Total net income 6,673,261 2,644,300
Expenses
Performance fee (Mote &) 1,960, 786 280,080
Sub-investment manager management fee (Note 6) 449,392 410,801
Agent and distributor fee (Mote 6) 295 403 2604, 843
Investment management fee (MNote &) 186,116 220,040
Professional fee 120,534 02595
Administration fee (Nole &) 89,000 89,000
Brokerage commmission expense 54,981 462
Trustee fee (Mote &) 20,495 20,455
Manager Fee (Note 6) 15,764 14,981
Custody fee (Note ) 5,008 589
Oither expenses 45,671 B0, 10
Total operating expenses 3,240,054 1,603,295
Operating income 3,429,207 1,039,005
Finance costs
Distributions to Unstholder (Note 7) (15,377} (19,3500
Net Increase In net assets resuliing from op erations
atiributable to Unitholder i 3413830 % 1,01 2655

The accompranying notes are an integral part of these Mnancial datements,

-5,
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{Expressed in United States dollars)

Met assets attributahle to Unitholder
Balance at begmning of year

Subserptions durmg the vear (Note 8)
Redemptions duning the vear (Note 8)

Met increzse m net assets from operations
attributable io Unitholder during the vear

Balance at emd of year

Year ended Year ended
30 Movanber 30 Mowvember
2002 2321
5 21135497 & 37,446,078
25,214, 560 130,391
(10,300,841 (17,460,627)
3413830 1,001 9655

5 39463046

3 21,135,497

The accompranying notes are an integral part of these Minancial datements,

.
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{Expressed in United States dollars)

Year ended Wear ended
3 Movember 30 November
2002 2021
Cash Nows from operating activities
Net increase m net assets resulting from operations
attributable to Unitholder 5 341380 & 1,019,655
Adjusted for:
Interest income (336,396) (18.097)
Distribution to Unitholder 15,377 19,350
3,092,811 1,020,908
Met (increase)/decreaze in financial azzets at far value through
profit or Joss (15,017,766) 12,057,611
Net (inerease)/decrense in margin accounts (1, 680,458) 2572761
Met decrease in other assets - 1,308
Net (decrease) in fmamcial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (70,185 (1,622.665)
Net mcresse m due 1o brokers 2,969, (62 -
Net merease/(decrease) in other payables 65,434 (43.332)
et cash (used in)provided by operations (11,341,106) 13,986,501
Interest received 336,390 18.087
Net eash (used Inyprovided by operating activities (11,00, 7100 14,004 688
Cash flows from fMnancing activities
Proceeds from subscriptions from Unitholder 24,285,642 3,034,554
Fedemptions paid to Unitholder (10,002, 0059) (17.460,627)
Distributions paid to Unitholder (15377 (19,3500
MNet cash provided by/(used in} Mnancing activities 14,258,256 {14,445,423)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,253,506 (440,735)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 82150 1.322.891
Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear £ 4135702 & HE2. 156

The accompranying notes are an integral part of these Minancial datements,

a7
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1. Owrganization

DIAM Caymen Trust {the “Trust™) is un exempted unit trust established under the lwws of the Cayman Islands
pursuant to declaration of trust (the “Trust Deed™) dated 29 June 2011, DIAM Cavman Trust - Aspect Managed
Futures Fund {the “Class Fund”) commenced operations on 16 March 2012 The Trust is registered under the
Cayman Islands Mutual Funds Act with effect from 29 June 2011, The Trust’s place of busmess is 25 Mam Strect,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1107, Cayvman [slands. The Trut filed on behalfl of the Class Fund a secunities
regetralion statement on 3 February 2012 pursuant to the Financial Instrument Exchange Law with the Director of
the Kanto Local Fimance Bureau and a registration statement pursuant to the Investment Trust Law with the
Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency.

The Class Furd is a series trust of the Trust, The investment objective of the Class Fund iz to generate sed v -term
capital growth independent of overall movenents in traditional stock and bond markets within a rigorous risk
management framework. The Sub-Tnvestment Manager (Mote &) appliez a fully svstematic and breadly diversified
global trading svstem, which deploys multiple strategies that, primarily through the use of dervatives, seek to
identify amd exploat directional moves in market behavior of a broad range of Minancial instruments and other assets
ingluding (but ned limated Loy equities, equity indices, debt securities (incledmg bonds), cumrencies, miterest rates and
commedities (including energy, metal and agricultural commodities),

2. Significant accounting polices

The principal accoumting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below, These
policies lave been consistently applied throughout the pericd, unless otherwize stated,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Class Fund have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) a3 issued by the Intermational Standards Board, The finacial statements have been prepared
uneder the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative financial instnuments) at fair value through profit or loss,

The preparation of fmancial datements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain entical accoamtmg
estimates, It also requires the Trustes io exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Class Fund's
accounting policies.  The areas involving a higher degree of judpment or complexity, or arcas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Notes 2, % and 10.

All reflerences to nel assels throughowt this decument refer o nel assels sttnbutable to the holder of Participating
Units unless otherwise stated. MNet assets per unit mformation for each class of Participating Units as disclosed in
Note 8 has been determined as total assels less total liabilities for each class, divided by the number of owl=tanding
units of each class of Participating Units,
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2 Slgmificant accounting policles {continued
Basis of preparation {contined)

el Stemudkrrds v amendme nts fo existing standards effective § December 2024

There are no olher gandards, amendments to sandards or interpretations that are effective for annual periods
beginning on 1| December 2021 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund

il New standards, amendments and iterpretations isaed bt nol effeciive Jor the financial period begiing
1 December 2024 and not early adopted

A number of new sandards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual pericdds beginning
after 1 December 2021, and have not been applied in preparing these finsncial statements. None of these are
expected to have a matenal effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund,

The significant accomting policies of the Class Fumd, which have been consistently applied to all periods presented
(unless otherwize stated), are as follows:

Financial assets and liabilities at fir value through profit or less
fa)  Classification

The Class Fumd classifies its investments in debt securities and derivatives at fair value through profit or loss. The
Clage Fumd clazzifies itz investmentz based on both the Class Fund®s business model for managing those fmancial
asgels and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfelio of financial assets is
managed, and performance s evaluated on a Gur value basis. The Class Fund is primarily focused on fair value
information and uses that information Lo assess the assets” performance and to make decisions. The contractual cash
flows of the Class Fund®s debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held
for the purpose of collectmg contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale.
The collection of contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Class Fund®s business model’s objective.

Derivative contracts that have a pesitive or negative fair value are presented as financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair valwe throegh profit or loss, respectively.

As such, the Class Fund ¢lassifies all of its investment portfolio as financial azsets or liabilities at Gair value through
profit or loss, The Class Fund's obligation concerning not asscts attributable to Unitholder is recorded at the
redeemable smounts, which approcimates far value.  All other fmancial assets and liabilities are classified as and
measured ol mmorized cost.
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2 Slgmificant accounting policles {continued

Financial assets and liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss {continued})
() Recogrition, derecognition aned measigrenent

Regular purchases and sales of investmenis are recognized on the trade daie — the date on which the Class Fund
commits lo purchase or sell the invedtmen. Financial assets and fmancial liabilities at far value through profit o
lesz are indtially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as mecumed in the Sistement of
Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the
Clags Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value. Cains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial essets or financial
linbilities at fair value through profit or loss* category are presented in the Statemnent of Comprebensive Income
within net changes in fair value on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the pericd in
which they anise.

fed  Foir velee extimetion

Securitics for which there is an active market are valued at fair value, by reference to bid prices quoted on the
exchange upon which such securities are traded or prices quoted by the principal market makers for non-exchange
traded mvestments.

The Class Fund enters into derivative comracts comprising forward curmency contracts and fulures contracts. These
dervative contracts are carried at their fair value in the Staternent of Financial Position and the resulting realized
and unrealized gains or losses are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fair value is generally
brased on quoted markel prices or broker or dealer price quatations. The fair value of over the coumter dermvatives is
determined based on valuation pricing models which take into account relevant cument market inputs for interest
rates, currencies, equities and commoedities as well as time values, lquidity and volatility factors underlyving the
positions.

Collateral: Cash collateral provided by the Clazs Fund is identified in the Statement of Financial Posilion as margin
accounts and is not included as a component of cash and cash equivalents. Margin accounts represent margin
deposits held in respect of open exchange-traded fitures contracts and forward currency exchange contracts,

= 1.
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2 Slgmificant accounting policles {continued

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on demand and on short notice and all
deposits with origmal temms to maturity of nol more than 3 months.  All of the Class Fund's cash and cash
equivalent balance as at 30 November 2022 15 maintained with the Custodian of the Class Fund (Mote 91

Due fromio brokers: Amomts due from brokers represent amounts receivable from brokers arising firom unsettled
dervative transactions with brokers. Amounts due to brokers represent smounts pavable to brokers arising from
urisettled derivative transac ions with brok ers.

Offsefiing Mnancial instraments: Finaneial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amoont repored i the
Staternent of Financial Position when there 15 a legally enforceable nght o offset the recognized amomts and there
15 an inbention to sefile on anet basis or realize the asset and settle the Lability simultaneously.

Expenses: Expenses are accounted o on an sccruals basis,

Interest income and interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: Infterest income is

recognized on an accruals basis using the effective mterest method, Interest meome includes interest from cash and
cash equivalents and margin cash. Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss inchades mterest
from debt securities.

Income taxes: Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, estate, transfer sales or other
Cayman Island taxes pavable by the Clazs Fund, Az a result, no provision for meome taxes has been made in the
financial statemnents. Interest income eamed by the Class Fund i= generally subject to foreign withholding iax at
SOUTCE,

The Class Fund invests m securities issued by entities which are virtually all domiciled in countrics other than the
Cayman Istands, Maw of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be
applicable to non-residents, such as the Class Fund, Typically, these capital gains taxes are required to be
determined on a self-azsesament basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be daducted by the Class Fund's brokers
ot a “withholding™ basis.

Al 30 November 2022, the Class Fund has measured its tax liabilities with respect to foreign capital gams taxes at
mil (30 MNovember 2021 nil).

Distributions: Dstributions to the Unitholder are classificd as other expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (MNote T

Forvign exchange (ransactions:  Assets and labilities denominated in currencies other than the United States
Dollar (*USDF) are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the diy of valuation. Foreign cumrency income
and expenditure items are converted at the rate of exchange on the dste of the transaction. Gains and losses on
foreign currencies are meluded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period inwhich they anise.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to ihe financial asseis and liabilities carmied at fair value throwgh profit or
loss are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within *net changes in fair value on financial assets
and fimancial Enbilities ot fair value through profit or loss".

=11 -
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2 Slgmificant accounting policles {continued

Functional and presentation ourrency: Items included in the Cless Fund's financial statements are measured
mhmnf&npmymnmﬂmwhd:ﬁw[ﬂu“ﬁmdwlﬂu UsD.
The majority of investments are denominated in USD snd a portion of the Class Fumd's subecriptions and
redemplions are ransacted in USD. In addition, the Class Fund has adopted the USD as its presentation curmrency.

Farticipating Units: The Class Fund issues three class units (Note 8) which are redeemable at the holder's option
and do not have identical rights.  Such Participating Units are classified as financial labilities. The Participating
Units can be put back to the Class Fund by the holder on any business dav for cash equal to a proportionate share of
the Class Fund's net assets, The Participating Units are carried at the redemption amount that 13 pavable at the
Statement of Fmancial Position date if’ the Unitholder exercised their right to put the unit back to the Class Fumed,

3. Financial sssets and Habilities at Fair value through profit or loss

Al 30 Novermnber 2022 financial azeets at Gur value through profit or koss which are held for trading are comprised

oft
Fair %o of net
value assels

Investments in United States Treasury securities

LS. Treasury Bills 5 26,436,206 G699 2%
Total investiments in United States Treasury securities 5 i, 436, 2646 G699 9
Dérivative conlracts

Forward contracts 5 1,505,466 581 %

Futures contracts 874,278 291 0
Total derivative contracts 5 2379604 603 %o
Total inandal asseis at fair value through profit or loss 5 258 815,960 T302 %o
At 30 November 2022 financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are held for trading are
comprised of:

Fair %% of net
vilue assets

Derivative coniracis

Forward contracts 5 (1,235.694) [3.13) %

Futures contracis (1.07&.143) (2.73) %
Total derivative contracts 3 (2,311,842 (5.86) %o
Total Mnandial liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss 5 {2, 311.842) (5.86) %o
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3. Financial asseis and liabilities ai fair value throo ofit or loss (continwed

At 30 Novernber 2021 financial assets at far value through profit or loss which are held for trading are comprised

of:
Fair % of net
value assets
Investiments in United States Treasury securities
115, Treasury Bills 5 10,956 485 5.8 %
Total Investments in Undted States Treasury securities 5 10,956,456 5154 %
Derivative confracis
Forward contracts 5 2155141 1020 %%
Fustures contracts 686 567 33 09
Tolal derivative contracts s 2,841,708 1345 %o
Total Mnandial assels at Mair valoe throngh profit or loss 5 13,795,194 6520 %o

At 30 November 2021 financial liabilities at fair value through profit or lozs which are held for trading are

comprised of:
Fair %o of net
value asaets
Drerivative confracts
Forward contracts 5 {1,497 530) (7.09% 9%
Futures contracts (1,574.5001) (7.45) %%
Total derivative contracts 5 (3.072.031) (14.54) %o
Total inandal liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5 {3, 072.031) {14.54) %o
Med changes in Mair value on fnancial assels and liabilities at
Mair value through profit or loss:
Period from Perod from
1 Decemnber 2021 1 Drecembrer 2020
to 30 November to 30 Movemnber
022 2021
Realized 5 6,068,650 § 3248177
Change in urealized 268,215 (621,974)
Total gains 5 6.336.8658 8 2,626,203

=13 -
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4. Derivative Mnancial Insiruments

In the normal course of business, the Class Fund may trade various financial mstruments and enter into various
investment activities with off-balance sheet nsk.  These fmancial instruments nclude futures and forward currency
contracts. Futures contracts are exchange traded while forward currency contracts are contractual armangements with
preapproved counterparties.

Futures and forward currency contracts provide for the delaved delivery of secunities, commodities, curmencies or
other financial nstruments with the coumerparty agrecing to make or ke delivery at a specified future date, at a
specified price or vield, Mardet and credit risk arize related to these contracts.  As transactions in futures require
participants to make both initial margin deposits and vaniation margin deposits directly with the exchange on which
the contracts are traded, credit expesure with coumterparties iz limited.

The Class Fund is required to mamtain collateral in ther futures and forward cumency contract margm accounts.
Amounts deposited as margin are restricted in terms of use and markctability. This amount is closcly monitored by
the Class Fund.

The Clazs Fund holds the following derivative mstruments:

fer)  Futres

Futures are contractual cbligations to buy or sell financial instruments on a future date at a specified price
establizhed in an organized market. The future contracts are collateralized by cash or marketable securities; changes
in the futares contracts” value are setiled daily with the exchange. Futures are seliled on a net basis,

At 30 Novemnber 2022, the Class Fund held the following concentrations in exchange traded futures:

MNet Notional Fair Vahie
Futures contracts, at fuir value, net

Currencies 5 (3429060 S (5.826)
Erergy (36,502) 191,526
Financialz (45,313,418) (113,508)
Grains 1,135,066 51547
Index 435 8525 (137,751)
Lendon Metals (343,961) (172,04 5)
Materials (76, 4al) (81500
Meats 1,251,843) (26,032)
Metals (592115 18,22
Total futures contracts, at fair value, net g (46,386,314 S (20.915)
=14 -
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4. Derivative Minancial instruments {continmed)
At 30 Novernber 2021, the Class Fund held the following concentrations in exchange traded futures:

Mt Motional Fair Value
Futures contrscts, at fir value, net
Currencies 3 (1,120, 6557 15,505
Energy 3,003,474 {194,843
Financials (26,893,030} (344,943)
Grains 2822171 (30,213)
Tndlex 13,068,302 (389.354)
London Metals 1692314 104,330
Muterials B32,380 (34,30%)
Meats 631,648 {6,068)
Metals (13,045) (5,043)
Total lutures contracts, at Gair value, net 5 (5,916,4581) (557,934)

i Forward confrocis

The following is a summary of open forward currency contracts at 30 November 2022:

Maturity Date

Unrealized Gain

AUD Class Specific
Buy AUD 932,152 and Sell USD 619058 30 December 2022 14,647

JPY Class Specific
Buy JFY 2,800,750 and Sell USD 20,103 05 December 2022 196
Buy JPY 4,021,173,784 and Sell USD 28,593 831 30 December 2022 678,553

Class Fund Specific
Buy AUD 1,300,000 and Sell USD 856,620 21 December 2022 26,722
Buy BRL 1,075,050 and Sell USD 200,000 21 December 2022 5919
Buy CAD 403,692 and Sell USD 300,000 21 December 2022 483
Buy CHF 839,152 and Sell USD 875,000 21 December 2022 15,488
Buy CLP 1,605477,263 and Sell USD 1,750,000 21 December 2022 56,787
Buy CWH 8,981,503 and Sell USD 1,250,000 21 December 2022 25,652
Buy COP 5,534,448,825 and Sell USDy 1,100,000 21 December 2022 41,746
Buy CZK 33,073,834 and Sell EUR 1,350,000 21 December 2022 4,796
Buy EUR 1,125,000 and Sell CHF 1,103,248 21 December 2022 2,897
Buy EUR 13000000 and Sell HUF 533,775,806 21 December 2022 8,292
Buy EUR 1,300,000 mnd Sell MOK 13,318,493 21 December 2022 1583
Buy EUR 1,500,000 and Sell USD 1,536,682 21 Decemnber 2022 28,167
Buy EUR 125,000 and Sell CZK 3,050,863 21 December 2022 49
Buy EUR 200,030 and Sell JPY 28657 578 21 December 2022 00
Buy EUR 350,000 and Scll GBP 301 8% 21 December 2022 20

15
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4. Derivative Minancial instruments {continmed)

Class Fund Specific
By ELTR, 5,600,000 and Sell SEK 60,727,112
Buy GBP 6,725,451 and Sell EUR 7,700,000
Buy GBFP 800,000 and Sell USD 928,264
Buy IDR. 2,357,065,002 and Sell USD 130,000
By ILS 5,348,203 and Sell USD 1,550,000
Buy INE 57,435 450 and Sell USD 700,000
Buy JFY 238,936,495 and Sell USD 1,700, (<0
Buy JEY 398,336,743 and Sell EUR 4, 100, (<60
Fary KEW 2,263,157,670 and Sell USD 1, 700,000
Bay MM 65,152,826 and Sell USD 3,325,000
Buy MOK 10,350,0:44 and Sell EUR 1,000, 000
Buy NZD 3,000,000 and Sell USD 1,790,223
By FEMN 674,587 and Sell USD 175,000
Buy FHP 22,942 561 and Sell USD 400,000
Buy FLM 30,701,825 and Sell EUR. 6,50, (X0
By SEK 10,985,827 and Sell ELTR 1,00:0,000
Fary 84GD 1,386,379 and Sell USD 1,000,000
Buy THB 14,241,111 and Sell USD 400,000
Buy TWD» 23,924,140 and Sell USD 750,060
By USD 100,000 and Sell CHF 94,000
Buy USD 100,000 and Sell CNH 702,803
Buy USD 100,00 and Sell IDE. 1,554,954,312
Buy USD 150,000 and Sell INR 12,174,403
Fary USD 200,000 and Sell CLP 178,201 493
Buy USD 230,000 and Sell TWD 7,671,859
Buy USD 400,000 and Sell BRL 2,063,755
Buy USD 50,000 and Sell ZAR 850,645
Buy USD 500,000 and Sell CAD 669,334
Buy ZAR 12,239,945 and Sell USD 700,000
Buy AUD 600,000 and Sell USD 404,585
By GBP 400,000 and Sell USD 481,635
Buy INE 49,146,625 and Sell USD a00,000

= 1é-
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Maturity Date

Unrealized Gain
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21 December 2022
21 Decemnber 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decemnber 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decennber 2022
2] Decemnber 2022
21 Decemnber 2022
2] December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decenber 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
2] Decemnber 2022
21 Decemnber 2022
21 Decemnber 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decenbeer 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Degemnber 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decembeer 2022
18 January 2023
18 January 2023
18 January 2023

49,507
81,453
36,947
EES]
17,817
3,549
37,046
73,508
28,083
3TEE
2,234
100,181
557
6,412
25,838
4,712
18,215
4,836
25,600
249
182
739
480
695
1,285
4,705
585
1,790
11,006
3582
1,395
21,765
1,505,466
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4. Derivative Minancial instruments {continmed)

JPY Class Specific
Buy USD 40,223 and Sell JPY 5,599,000

Class Fund Spediic
Buy BRL 6,203.473 and Sell USD 1,200,000
Buy CAD 1,064,691 and Sell USD 800,000
Buy CHF 293 407 and Sell EUR 300, 000
Buy CHF 86%475 and Sell UISD 925, (6K
Fuy CLF 44,350,675 and Sell USD 50,000
Buy COF 962,108,001 and Sell LISD 200,000
Buy EUR 1,350,000 and Sell GBP 1178805
Buy EUR 100,000 and Sell USD 104,623
Buy EUR 200,000 and Sell PLN 942,491
Buy EUR 300,000 and Sell HUF 124,420,778
Bary ELTR, 4,075,000 and Sell CHF 4,022938
Buy ELUR 600,000 and Sell JPY 86,597 816
Buy ELR 750,000 and Sell NOK 7,762,583
Buy EUR 875,000 and Sell CZK 21 408,405
Buy HUF 631 805,208 and Sell ELTR 1,600,000
Buy IDE 3448927440 and Sell USD 330,000
Bay ILS 511,324 and Sell USD 150,000
Bay INR 12,202,468 and Sell USD 1 30,000
Buy KRW 65,399 685 and Sell USD 50,000
Buy MM 484,225 md Sell USD 25,000
Buy NOK 512,171 and Sell ELTR. 50,000
Buy FEMN 287,917 and Sell USD 75,000
Buy PLM 235,171 and Sell EUR 50,000
Buy SEK 21,684,261 and Sell ELTR 2, 000, (00
Buy TWI 3,061,830 and Sell USD 100,000
Buy USD 1.000,000 and Sell SGD 1,396,116
Bary USD 1,000,000 and Sell TWD 31,283 369
Bary USD 1,100,000 and Sell MXMN 21,579,152
Buy USD 1,150,000 and Sell ZAR 20,490,484
Bary USD 1,400,000 and Sell THE 51,753,776
Buy USD 1,550,000 and Sell KEW 2145247 510
Buy USD 1,800,000 and Sell IDR 28,293, 500,482
Buy USD 2.450,000 and Sell CNH 17,647 408
Bary US> 2,500,000 and Sell JPY 364,315,937
Bay USD 3,110422 and Sell EUR 3,1 00,000
Bary USD 3,300,000 and Sell CAD 4,450,354
Buy USD 450,000 and Sell CLP 409 473,735
Bary USD 5,000,000 and Sell ILS 17,627,588
Buyy USD 5,500,000 and Sell CHF 5,399,970

.17

Maturity Date
30 December 2022
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21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decemnber 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decenvber 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Diecember 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decennber 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decemnber 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decemnber 2022
21 December 2022

Unrealized
—(Loss)

(535)

(11,775)
(75110
(1,613)
(2,333)

(174)
(1,51%)
(13,87%)
(3007
(311)
(1,223

(17,804)
(3618
(76420
(1,940

(23,209)
(2.236)

(106}
(145)
(63

(T

(B0
(72
(22)
(17,991}
(738)

(25,366)

(14,180

(13,815)

(40,273)

(71,2200

(B8, 050)
(5801)

(56,426)

(149.997)
(12346000

(12.563)

(7.965)
(167.499)
(230,321)
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4. Derivative Minancial instruments {continmed)

Unrealized
Maturity Date {Loss)

Class Fund Specific

Buy USD 50,000 and Sell COP 249,867 000 21 December 2022 (1,347
Buy USD 500,000 and Sell PEN 1,982,102 21 December 2022 (15,82%)
Bary USD 60,945 and Sell WED 100,000 21 Decemnber 2022 {2.068)
Bauy USD 700,000 and Sell INE, 57,236,825 21 December 2022 (29100
Buy USD 700,000 and Sell PHF 40,805,328 21 Decembeer 2022 (22.843)
Buy USD 750,000 and Sell BRL 3,992,655 21 December 2022 (14,761)
Buy USD 851 403 and Sell AUD 1,300,000 21 December 2022 (31,948)
Buy USD 947 260 and Sell GBP 800, (K0 21 December 2022 (17.951)
Buy HUF 124 489502 and Sell EUR 300,000 18 January 2023 (1,741)
(1,235,699
The following is a surmmary of open forward currency contracts at 30 November 2021:
Maturity Date Lnrealized Gain
AUD Class Specilic
Buy USD 46,321 and Sell AUD 64,207 30 Decemnber 2021 G55
JPY Class Specliic
Buy JFY 2,069,385 868 and Sell USD 18,035,230 30 December 2021 2TE156
Class Fund Specilic
Buy BRL 712,518 and Sell USD 125,000 15 December 2021 a7
Buy CHF 4,578,828 and Sell EUR 4,300,000 15 December 2021 115,490
Buy CHF 553,801 and Sell USD 604,04 15 December 2021 3,170
Buy CLP 41,799,280 and Sell USD 30,000 15 Decemnber 2021 430
Buy CNH 28,557,029 and Sell USD 4,400,000 15 December 2021 79,748
Buy CZK 1,276,708 and Sell EUE, 50,000 15 December 2021 23
By EUR 100,000 and Sell USD 113,232 15 Decemvber 2021 59
Buy EUR 2,150,000 and Sell NOK 21,315,127 15 December 2021 #4812
Buy EUR 2,300,000 and Sell HUF 824,780,445 15 December 2021 43,571
Buy EUR 350,000 and Sell CZK 13,972,744 1% December 2021 2,898
Buy EUR 6,300,000 and Sell SEK 63,752,320 15 Decemnber 2021 74,432
Buy EUR 800,000 and Sell GBP 676,903 15 Decemnber 2021 7131
Buy EUR 975,000 and Sell PLN 4468646 15 December 2021 19,842
Buy GBP 2,084,196 and Sell EUR 2,425,006 15 December 2021 21,335
Buy HUF 2200483 545 and Sell EUR 600,000 15 December 2021 5171

18-
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4. Derivative Minancial instruments {continmed)

Class Fund Specific
By IDE 10,803 945,073 and Sell USD 750,000

Buy ILS 5,765,976 and Sell USD 1,800,000
Buy INE 77,305,320 and Sell USD 1,025 000
Buy JEY 130,238,701 and Sell EUR 1,000,000
Buy JPY 148,044,751 and Sell USD 1,300,000
Buy KREW 119,316,968 and Sell TISD 100,000
Buy NOK 17,539,962 and Sell EUR 1,700,000
Buy PEN 1,644,914 and Sell USD 400,000

Buy PHP 45,838,073 and Sell USD 900,000
Buy PLN 116,705 and Sell EUR 25,000

Buy THE 5,067,794 and Sell USD 150,000
Buy TWD 41, 248.213 and Sell USDx 1,300,000
Buy USD 1,025,000 amd Sell ILS 3,184,618
Buy USD 1,075,000 and Sell BRL 5,938 4%0)
Buy USD 1,200,000 and Sell CLF 972,763,810
Buy USD 1,575,000 and Scll MXN 32,884,276
Buy USD 1,925,000 and Sell KEW 2,273.065,435
Buy USD 2,200,000 and Sell COP 8,403,675, 138
Buy USD 2,325,000 and Sell SGD 3,142,338
Buy USD 2,600,000 and Sell CHF 2,371 880
By USD 3, 300,000 and Sell THE 104,613,759
Buy USD 3,600,000 and Sell IFY 396840477
Buy USD 3,762,267 and Sell NZD 5,350, 0040
Bury USD 300,000 and Sell RUB 21,734,443
Buy USD 46000000 and Sell CAD 5,797 358
Buy USD 4,800,000 and S¢ll TWD 132,625,971
Buy USD 4 50,000 and Sell FEN 1,806,159
Buy USD 450,000 and Sell PHP 22627808
Buy USD 5,558,785 and Sell GBFP 4,100,000
Buy USD 5 875982 and Sell AUD 8,000,000
Buy USD 750,000 and Sell IDR 10,708, 208,928
Buy USD 750,000 and Sell INR 55,996,455
Buy USD 8,016,948 and Scll EUR 6,800,000
Buy USD 900,000 and Scll ZAR 13,726,753
Buy ZAR 806,817 and Sell USD 30,000

Buy JEY 44,946,085 and Sell EUR 350,000
Buy UIST 350,000 and Sell IDR 5, 070660, 000

19,
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Maturity Date Unrealized Gain
15 Decemnber 2021 3065
15 December 2021 26,816
15 December 2021 2,297
15 December 2021 18,5907
15 December 2021 9,204
15 December 2021 583
1% December 2021 8617
15 Decemnber 2021 4,089
15 December 2021 BEHSS
15 December 2021 7
15 December 2021 409
15 Drecember 2021 82603
15 December 2021 16,029
13 Decemvber 2021 24,872
15 December 2021 265,389
15 Decemnber 2021 47,214
15 Decemnber 2021 8797
15 December 2021 100,227
15 December 2021 24,336
15 Diecember 2021 16,690
15 December 2021 95,133
15 December 2021 H0.380
15 Decemnber 2021 113,613
15 December 2021 8570
15 Decenber 2021 6,593
15 December 2021 30,311
15 Drecember 2021 6,280
15 Drecember 2021 1,347
15 December 2021 112,347
15 Decemnber 2021 179,248
1% December 2021 3608
15 Decenber 2021 5873
15 December 2021 313,150
15 Drecember 2021 40,606
15 Decemnber 2021 512

16 March 2022 419

16 March 2022 114

L1E5141



4. Derivative Minancial instruments {continmed)

AUD Class Specilic
By AU 857,088 and Sell USD 621,133

JPY Class Specilic
Buy USD 6,671 and Sell JFY 766,714

Class Fund Specific
By AUy 3,200,000 and Sell USD 2,383 348
Buy BRL 5,708,634 and Sell USD 1,075,000
Buy CAD 2238572 and Sell USD 1,500,004
Buy CHF 365,511 and Sell USD 400, 000
Buy CLFP 2,208 856,280 and Sell USD 2,800,000
Buy COP 3,430,293 850 and Sell USD 900,000
Buy CZK 43,314,074 and Sell EUR 1,700,000
Buy EUR 1,000,000 and Sell JPY 130,062,598
Buy EUR 130,000 and Sell NOK 1,343376
Buy EUR 175,000 and Sell PLN 821,756
Buy EUR 2,500,000 and Sell USD 2,915,103
Buy EUR 200,000 and Sell SEK 2,051,548
Buy EUR 400,000 and Sell GBF 342,660
Buy EUR 600,000 and Sell CHF 644,154
By EUR 00,000 and Sell CZK 23,074,116
Buy GBP 1,700,000 and Sell USD 2,342,108
Buy GBP 2,645,7% and Sell EUR 3,125,000
Buy HUF 1,227 926,075 and Sell ELTR 3, 500,000
Buy IDR 7,169,394 415 and Sell USD 500,000
Buy INE. 143,317,004 and Sell USD 1,925,000
Buy JFY 88,160,290 and Sell USTy £00,000
By KEW 931,704,341 and Sell USD 800,000
Buy MXN 41,596.460 and Sell USD 2030,000
Buy NOK 17,653,205 and Sell EUR 1,750,000
By NZD 6,600,000 and Sell USD 4,693,203
Fury FEM 401,628 and Sell USD 100,000
Buy FHF 5,037,124 and Sell USD 100,000
Buy PLN 15,748,402 and Sell EUR 3,425,000
Buy RUB 170,631,779 and Sell USD 2,300,004
Buy SEK 17,085,205 and Sell ELTR. 1,700, 000
Buy SGD 1,346,052 and Sell USD 1,000,000
Buy THB 43,203,982 and Sell USD 1,300,000
Fuy TWI 29,083,862 and Sell USD 1,050,000
Buy USD 1325000 and Sell KEW 1,.579,078,577
Buy USD 1,700,000 and Sell JPY 193,950,898
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Maturity Date
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30 December 2021

30 December 2021

15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decemnber 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decemnber 2021
15 Decenber 2021
15 Decennbrer 2021
1% December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decemnber 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decemnber 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decenber 2021
15 Decemnber 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decenber 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decemnber 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decenber 2021
15 December 2021
15 Decemnber 2021
15 Decennber 2021
15 Decemnber 2021

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Unrealized

— [(loss)

-

(10,612

(112

{104,654)
(65,519)
(48,714)

i1,905)

(135,075)
(42,804)

(3,381)
(17,350)
(2900
(1,219
(52.824)
(702)
(2,025)
(21,8300
i4,563)
(83,829)
(25.671)
(150,715
73
(20,485)
(20,310
(14.369)

{117,450)
(35,538)

{192,060

(1,334
(126)
(57.358)
(12,121}
(36,459)
(14,488)
(17,735)
(<4,049)
(6,170)
(15,284)
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4. Derivative Minancial instruments {continmed)

Unrealized
Maturity Date {Loss)
Class Fund Specific
By USD 100,000 aind Sell COP 402 030,850 15 December 2021 5 (453)
Bury USD 100,000 and Sell RUB 7,597,003 15 December 2021 (1,863)
Bury UUSD 100,000 and Sell THE 3,384, 768 15 December 2021 {458
Buy USD 2,750,000 and Sell CHH 17,680 064 15 December 2021 (23,476)
Buy USD 200,000 and Sell CAL 256,281 15 December 2021 454)
Buy USD 25,000 and Sell BRL 141,411 15 Decemnber 2021 (a)
Bugy USD 275,000 and Sell 8GD 376,353 15 Decenber 2021 547y
Bury USD 3,100,000 amel Sell CHF 2,875,045 15 December 2021 (31,995)
Buy USD 350,000 and Sell PEN 1,444,051 15 December 2021 (24,7540
Buy USD 350,000 and Sell PHP 17,759,400 15 December 2021 (2,125)
Buy USD 350,000 and Sell TWD 9,734,308 15 Decemniber 2021 (790
Buy USD 374,394 and Sell NZD 350,000 15 December 2021 (T02)
Bury USD 400,000 and Sell CLP 333,856,835 15 Decenber 2021 (5,202)
Biry UISD 50,000 and Sell INR 3,763,3% 15 Deceqber 2021 (11
Buy USD 50,000 and Sell ZAR 808,781 15 December 2021 (635)
Buy USD 505,034 and Sell IDK 7,265,130,581 15 December 2021 (1,366)
Buy USD 575,000 and Sell MM 12,514,649 15 December 2021 (6,424)
Buy USD 70,885 and Sell AUD 100,000 15 Decemnber 2021 (324
Buy USD 775,000 and Sell ILS 2480,531 15 Decemnber 2021 (10,859
Buy USD 901,278 and Sell EUR 800,000 15 December 2021 (5,051
Buy ZAR 5,894,380 and Sell USD 400,000 15 December 2021 (30,9700
g {1,497, 5300
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5 Offsetting Mnancial assets and liabilities

As of 30 Novemnber 2022 and 30 November 2021, no financial instruments of the Class Fund are being presented net
within the statemnent of financial position (See Note 3 for gross amounts). The following tables provide information
ot the fimmncial impact of netting for inAruments subject to an enforceable master nelling arrangement of simila
agrecment in the event of default as defined under such agreements.

The following tables summarnize the grogs ad net fmancial assets and liabilities per countemparty as at 30 Movember 2022:

Offsetting of Financil Assets amd Derivative Assets

Relsted Amoumty oot set-off in the
Ststement of Fisaseisl Position
Gross Amownts of Asets
i the Statemeat of Finsacial Collateral
Deicripton CamterParty Finsnelsl Pedltien Instraments * Recalved ™ Nt Amomt™
Forvards Bk of New York Mellon  § 9338 ¥ 535 § = §  dfaasl
Forvands Citiback 425,174 (H1TAST) - 7.712
Forvards Degtsche Bank EL LT (386,056) . *
Fubires TP Mosgn £74, 338 (874,228) - .
Margin Hank of Mew York Mellon 4410566 (2,568 DEX) - 1 A48 504
Mixgin Citibank 1,750,690 - . 1,750,690
Megin Deaische Bank 173,589 (430,804) - 1,343,183
Mirgin TP Morgn 3,483,093 (201,915) . 3,281,178
Totd s 10806432 8 (S180904) - S 85558
Offaetting of Finuncinl Linbilities and De rivative Linbilities
Relmbed Amousty not seb-offin the
Bisteaseal of Fissatial Poditicoa
Groms Amounis of
Li absilitien in the
Statement of Financial Finsncisl Collateral
Descripticn ComterParty Foaltlen Instrumeais Fledgrd ™ Nt Amommi”
Forvards Deutache Bank 5 nim ¥ (386,855) 3 (430806) 5 .
Forwgds Haedk of Few York Mellan 535 {535) = -
Forsards Citibank 417463 (417.463) - .
Fubxres I¥ Morgen 1,076,143 (374,228) (201.815) .
Do to rokes Bk of New York Mellon 2,569,063 (2,969,062) . .
Tl 5 S2E0504 % (4548183 § (532721} 8

1y Cross enounts of relabed finsecial sstrements ovslable Eor offiet bt nof metted m the Stabement of Fimancsl Postion
) Croee amounts of related carl collateral and margan borrowing avadable for offeet but not neftedin the Zatemest of Fmana al Poirhan

(¥ Bepresenis the et amounes due te or from the connterpasty in the evest of defmlthuged oa the contraciusl set=off rights under the agreement

126/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities {continued)

The followang tables summanze the gross md net fmancial assets and habalities per counterparty as st 30 November 2021:
Offsetting of Fimancial Assets and Derivative Assets

Relsted Amousiy aot sei-oll in the
Sustement of Finsecial Poaltics
Gross Amounts of Aasets
1 the Statement of Fiomcisl Cod lnteral
Deseription ComterParty _M.gu_ Instruments ™ Recelved™ _ Net Amomi™
Foamards Detache Barik LI9S03E  § (65T 54) § . 85 531085
Forwards Hank of Mew York Mellon 73,79 {10,724) - EI0ET
Forwards Citibank &82.917 (EE231T) . .
Funres Credit Suisse ER6,I5T (E86,56T) - -
Magin Druiache Bank 1118659 . . 1,118,659
Ma=gin Bask of Mew York Msllon 3,553,097 - - 3,653,097
Margin Ctiberks 1,657,372 (136,541) . 1,520,831
Margin Credit Sulise 1307152 (BE7.534) = 2419218
Toual e IBITTIER 5 Q0T2031) 3 e S BHEIIT
Offsetting of Financil Linbilities and De rivative Liabilites
Rielated Amsomsty aol sei-ol in the
Statement of Fimsseial Position
Gross Amoants of
Linbilities in the
Stateowent of Finsscial Flnanclal Collsteral
Deseriptisn CammterParty Fosltisn Instruments Pledged ™ Nn.i—-:ﬂ
Forwards Dieutache Hank 5 GHTSMB  § (6aTSHE) &
Foramrds Hemk of Beew York Mellon 10,724 {10,724)
Forwards Catiburk 818,858 (E82,317) {us_m].
Tuires Credit Swisse 1574501 (G86.56T) (BT 554}
Teasl 5 o2 % (27556 8 {1024475) §

£y Groee amounts of related fnascial metrement: avalabde For offiet bt pot metted m the taement of Fisanceal PorSon
2y Groes amsuntr of related cadk collateral and margmn bomowing avalable For offist bot nct netted an the Statem et of Fmancad Featicn

(¥ Bepeedent the st mnsint dee 15 of frosn the contterpaety 1n the eveat of Adfmilthided sa the conracual set-olf rights under the agrecment

6. Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making fmancial or operational decisions.

Trustees and Manager

On 29 June 2011, FrstCaribbean Intemational Bank and Trust Company (Cavmand Limited became the Trustes of
the Trust, Purssant to the Trust Deed, the Trsstee and Manager have suthoeity and overall responsibility for the
Trust's admmistration and management, which includes the responsibility for distribution and redemption of units m
the Trust. The Trustee and Manager have appointed Bank of Mew York Mellon (USA) to provide the day-to-day
administration of the Class Fund. The Trustee is entitled to receive cut of the assets of the Class Fund a fee of 0.01%
per aranum of the net asset value subject to a quarterly minimum fee of $3,730, The Trstee's fee will be accrued daily
and calculated based on the net azset value as at the mmediately preceding Vahsation Day (daily) and pay able quarterly
il TeArs,

Bank and Trust Company Ltd. (the “Manager”) entered into the Trust Deed with the Trustee noted
above on 29 June 2011 and entered nto the Supplemental Trust Decd dated 27 Jamary 200 2 with the Trustee. The
Manager prescribes management of the Class Fund®s assets and issue and reporchase of the units of the Class Fund.

1
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6. Related party transactions {continued)

Trustee and Manager (continued)

The Manager 15 entitled to recave out of the assets of the Class Fund a fee of 0.019% per annum of the net asset value
subject to a quarterhy minmmm fee of 53,7500 The Manager's fec will be accrued daily and calculated based on the net
asset value as at the snmediately precedmg Valustion Day (daiby) and payable quarterly m arrears.

Agent and Distributor

On 27 Jamuary 2012, the Agent Compamy Agresment was entersd inte between Cueensgate Bank and Trust
Company, Ltd. and Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stanley Securities Co, Ltd (the “Agent™). The Agent Company
Agreement i3 an agreement pursuant to which the Agent, having been appointed by the Manager, agrees to submit
the prospectuses regarding the units of the Class Fund to the Japan Securities Dealers’ Association (“JSDA™),
publicize the net zzset value per unit and submit the documents such as the financial statements and other documents
to the JSDA, The Agent ig entitled to receive a fee of 0.05% per annum of the Net Asset Value attributable to such
classes of umits of the Class Fund,

On 27 January 2012, the Units Distribution and Repurchase Agreement was entered into between the Manager and
the Agent, under which the Agent acts as Distributor of units in Japan subject to terms and conditions.  The
Distributor is entitled to receive a fiee of 0.95% per annum of the Met Asset Valuwe attributable to such classes of
units of the Clasz Fund, The Agent and Digtributor's fee will be acorwed daily and calculated based on the et azset
value az st the imanediately preceding Valuation Day and payable quarterly in aears.

Administration

The Trustee and the Manager on behalf of the Class Fund have entered into an A dministrative Services Agresment
with Bank of New York Mellon (USA) dated 27 January 2012, under which Bank of Mew York Mellon through its
Alternative Investment Scorvices group (BNYM-AIS) acts as Administrator to the Class Furnid, The fee payable to
the Admimisrater is based upon an agreed upon fee schedule included in the agreament. The fee s sccrued daily
and payable quarterly in arrears, IF the net assets of the Class Fund are less than 250 million then the fee will be 8
basis points, if the net assels are between 250 million and 500 mallion then the fee wall be & basis points, if the net
assets are greater than 500 mallion then the fee will be 4 basis points of the net assets of the Class Fund  However,
there 15 a mmimum amual administration fee of $89,000.

Investment Manager

Assel Management One Intemational Lid, (the “[ovestment Manager™) has been appointed as Investment Manager
to the Trust pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 27 January 2012, pursuant to which the
Investment Manager is authorized to supervise and direct the investment and remvestment of assets in each sccount,
with full mshority and at it discretion.  These functions were delegated from the Manager to the Investment
Manager.

The Invesiment Manager is entitled to receive a management fee of (L63%6 per annum of the net asset value of the
Class Fund, The fee is accrued daily and calculated based on the net asset value as at the immediately preceding
Valuation Day and is payable quarierly in arrears.

Sub-Tnvestment Manager

The Investment Meanager has delegated to Aspect Capital Limited (the “Sub-Iovestment Manager™) the
responzibility for the management of the imvestment amd re-investment. of the Class Fund's assets pursuant to the
Sub-Investment Management Agreement dated 27 January 2012,

The Sub-lnvestment Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class Fund a management fee of 1.5%6 per
annwm of the et asset value of the portfolio in USD excluding the wmrealized gamzlosses of the class hedging

transactions (Mote 8) (the “Baseline Portfolio™). The fee is accrued daily and caleulated based on the net aszet value
as at the immedistely preceding Valuation Day and is pay able monthly in arrears,

.24
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6. Related party transactions {continued)

Sub-Investment Manager {cmﬂnurd}

The Sub-Investment Manager 15 entitled to receive oul of the assets of the Class Fund a monthly performance fee
equal to 20.0% of the Met Mew Profits of the Baseline Portfolio as st the end of the month (“Calculation Peried™).
Net Mew Profits are the sum of (1) the net of all realized profits and losses of the Baseline Portfolio, phlus (1) the
change in net unrealized profits and losses of the Baseline Portfolio, less (iiid the relevant fees of the Class Fund
(mcluding fees of Trustee, Manager, Admmastrator, Custodian, Distributos, Investment Manager and Sub-
Irvestment Managery, which is upper limited to 3.25% por annwm of the net asset value of the Baseline Portfolio,
less (iv) all brokerage commissions and transaction expenses, and less {v) if Net New Profits as at the end of the last
preceding Caleulation Period was negative (a "Curmulative et Los="), the amount of such Cumulative Net Loss.

Custodian

Bank of Mew York Mellon (the “Custodian™) has been appointed as the Castodisn to the Class Fund by the Trustee
puersieant (o a custody agreement dated 27 January 2012, The Custodian is entitled to receive oul of the assets of the
Clage Fund a fee of (.02% per annwrm of the net asset value, or such other fee a3 may be agreed between the Trustes
and the Custodian from time 1o tme,  The Custedian is also entitled to a transaction fee in accordance with its
nommal eale. The fee s acerued dadly and calculated based on the net assel value as at the immediately preceding
Waluation Dary and is payable quarterly in amears.

I, Disiributions

The Investment Manager iy direct the Adminisrator whe shall act on behalf of the Trstee to make distribations
to holders of any class of units,  The distributions will be paid out of the meome, realized and unrealized capital
gams and/or any distributable funds of the Class Fund altnbutable to the relevant class of umits.  Further, the
Irvestment Manager mav direct the Administrator on behalf of the Trustee to pay distributions out of the capital of
the Clazs Fund if considered necesary by the Investment Manager Lo mmmilain a reasonable level of dignbutions for
the Class Fund. During the period, the following disbursements were made:

Vear ended 30 Wear ended 30
MNovember 2022 Movember 2021
Distribution paid from AUD Class 5 (15377) & (19,3500
5 (15377} 3 (19,3500

8. Uniis in issue

Three classes of wmits, designated as USD (USD hedged) class units, AUD (AUD hedged) class units, JPY (JPY
hedged) class units, are available for subscription

Initicl C)ffer Period
Subseription of units by eligible investors were available during the initial offer pericd at a subscription price of®

USD (USD hedged) Class Unit - USS10.00 per Unit
AUD (AUD hedged) Class Unit - AUD10.00 per Unit
JPY (JPY hedged) Class Unit - ¥10,000 per Unit

Units which were subscribed for during the Initial Offer Period were saned on the 16 March 2012,
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5 Units in issue {continued)

Suebseauierst Subscriptions

Units of the applicable ¢lass of units will be available for subscription at the relevant subscription price applicable
on cach dealing day (daily). The subscrigtion price per unit of a class of units will be the net asset value per unit of
such class of wnits determined as at the valuation point on the valuation day falling on the relevant dealing day.

Afininnum suhseriptions

The mimimum subscription amount for USD (USD hedged) class units by an investor i1s USS100 and in ingremental
amounts of TJS30.01 thereafter or 10 Units and in incremental amounts of 0,001 unit thereafter. The minimmm
subscription amount for AUD (AUD hedged) class wnits 5 AUDIM and in incremantal amounts of ALDO.01
thereafter ar 10 umitz and in incremental smounts of 0,001 Unit thereafter, The minimum subscription smount for
the JFY (JPY hedged) class units is ¥ 10,000 and in incremental amounts of ¥1 thereafter or 1 unit and in incremental
armouits of 0.001 unit thereafler.

Redemptions

The umits of the Class Fund are redeemable at the option of the Unitholder on each dealing day at the reparchase
price, provided that the redemption notice has been received by the Administrator not less than 1 business day prior
to the relevant dealing day. The repurchase price per unit will be the met asset value per unit of the relevant class of
units determined az at the valuation point on the valuation day falling on the relevant dealing day.

Unit tramsactions durmg the year ended 30 Novemnber 2022 are as follows

Class Class Class
S0 hedged AUD hedged IPY hedged
("UsD™) (“AUD™) (=IFY™) Taotal

Unite at beginning of vear 386,627 98,671 239,396 TG94
Units izsued during the year 651,180 - 213,808 Bi6d GER
Units redesmed durng the year (338479 (7917} {95,630} (342,026)
Units at the end of year 799,508 90,754 35T5T4 1247656
Met Assel Value per Unil £1 1250 AUS 10.1% ¥ 11,129.30

Unil tramisactions durmg the vear ended 30 November 2021 are as follows

Class Class Clasg
USIH hedged AU hedged JPY hedged
("UsD™) (“AUD™) [CIFY™) Total
Units at heginning of vear 1,186,944 106 255 358804 1,652,336
Units issued duning the year 13,544 - - 13,544
Units redeemed during the year {813.861) (7.217) (119408} (241,186)
Units ait the end of year 356,627 95,671 139,396 T24.694
et Aszet Value per Unit i .03 ALUS 7.51 ¥ 508774
T
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5 Units in issue {continued)

The Class Fund's capital is primarily represented by these units. In accordmnce with the objectives outlined m
MNote 1 and the risk managament pohicies in Mote 9, the Class Fund endeavors to mved the subscriplions recemved
from the Unitholder imto appropnate investments while mamtaming sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions, with
such liquidity bemg augmented by shori-term bormowmgs or redemption of myvestments where necessany .

Ag at 30 Movemnber 2022 and 2021, all units of the Class Fund were held by one Unitholder.

5% Financial risk management
Finimicled risk foctors

The Class Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (mcluding price risk, cumency nisk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity sk

The Class Fund is also exposed to operational risks such as custody nsk. Custody nisk is the risk of loss of securnitics
held m custody occasioned by the insolvency or negligence of the custodian. Although an appropriste legal
framework 15 in place that eliminates the risk of loss of value of the securitics held by the custodian, in the event of
its failure, the ability of the Class Fund to transfer secunties might be temporarily impaired.

The Class Pund's owverall risk management program seeks to maximize the retumns derived for the level of risk to
which the Class Fund is exposed and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Class Fund's financial
performance. The Class Fund uses forward currency contracts to moderate certain risk exposures.

All securities investments present a risk of logs of capital. The maximum boss of capital on long debt securities i
limited 1o the Fair value of these positions. On short futures positions the maximum loss of capital can be unlimited.
The maximum loss of capital on loeng futures and forward curency contracts s limited to the notional contract
values of those positions.

Merkel risk

The Class Fumd &= exposed to debt securities and denivative price risk,  This arises from investments held by the
Clags Fund for which prices in the fiture are umeertain. Where non-monetary finamcial instruments are denominated
in currencies other than the USD, the price mitially expressed in foreign currency and then converted imto USD wall

also fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Paragraph (b) ‘Foreign exchange risk” below sets out

b this component of price risk is managed and measured.

Derivatives include mstmiments and contraciz, the value of which iz linked to ene or more underlying securities,
financial benchowarks or indices, The value of a derivative depends largely upon price movements i the underlying
assel. Mary derivatives provide significantly more market exposure than the money paid or deposited when the
tranzaction is entered into, A relatively small adverse market movement can resull not only in the loss of the entire
investment, bul may alse expose the Class Fund to the possibility of a loss exceeding the original amount invested.
There can be no assurance that derivatives that the Class Fund wish o acquire will be made available at ary
particular times on satisfactory terms or at all

The Class Fund's policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other financial
instruments within specified limits set by the govemning documents of the Class Fund,

At 30 Moverber, the fair value of debt and related derivatives exposed to price risk are summarized in Notes 3
and 4. Included in Mete 4 is the Class Fund's notional exposure on derivative contracts as well as the industry
EXPOFIE,

[ 353
-1
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9. Financial risk management {continmed)

The Investment Mmmager does not menage the Class Fund's investment strategy to track s benchmark or ary other
indexe At 30 November 2022, the Class Fund’s market risk is affected by three mam components: changes in actual
markel prices, mterest rate and foreign cwrency movements.  If the portfolio (excluding futures contractsy at 30
Novemnber 2022 had increased by 10% with all other vanables held constant, this would have mcreased net assets
attributable to Unitholder by approximately $2.6700603 (2021: 51,161,410 Conversely, if the portfodico (excluding
futiires comtractsh ab 30 November 2022 lad decreased by 1094, this would have decreased nel azsets sttnibutable to
Unitholder by approximately (S2670,603) (2021: (31,161 4107

The sensitivity analysis presented above is based upon the portfolio comgosition (exchiding futures contracts)y as at
A0 MWNovember, The composition of the Class Fund's investment portfolio is expected to change over time.
Accordingly, the sensitivity analvsis prepared az at 30 November & nod necessarity indicative of the effect on the
Claes Fund's net asssts in the fistare.

At 30 Movember 2022, had the notional value of futures contracts (excluding financial fitures with notional of
(545,313 418) subject to interest rate risk) mcreased or decreased by 10%6 with all other variables held constant, the
increase of decrease respectively innet assets atiributable to Unitholder is shown below:

Incr case/decr ease (+/-)

MNAY impact of
MNet MNotional 10%% notional
Fulures coniracis
Currencies 5 (342008) 5 34,201
Energy (36,502) 3,650
Graine 1135066 113,507
Inelex 435,825 43,583
London Metals (343,961) 34,396
Materals L] 7646
Meats (1,251,843) 125,184
Metals (502,115 59,212
Total Mutures contracts net notional 5 (1,0725%6)

At 30 Movemnber 2021, had the notional value of futures contracts (esxcluding foancial futires with notional of
(526,893,030) subject to interest rate risk) increased or decreased by 10%% with all other variables held constant, the
ingrease or decrease respectively in net assets attributable to Unitholder iz shown below:

Incr case/decr ease (+/-)

MAV impact of
MNet Motlonal 10% notional
Fulures contracts
Currencies s (1120695 % 112070
Encrzy 3,003,474 309,347
Grains 2822171 282217
Ind e 13,038,302 1,303,830
London Metals 1,602 314 169,231
Materials 832,380 83,238
Meats 631 548 63,163
Metals (13,0450 1,305
Total fstures contracts net notional s 20,976,540
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9. Financial risk management (continued

The sensitivity analysis presented above 1= based upon the future contracts in the portfolio only as at 30 November.
The composition of the Class Fund's futures contracts is expected to change over time, Accordingly, the sensitivity
anatysis prepared as at 30 Novernber is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Class Fund's net assets in the
future.

The Sub-Investment Manager atms to deliver the Class Fund's investment objective through the implementation of a
svsternatic quantitative investment programe The program applies a fully systematic and broadly diversified global
trading systenn which deploys multiple trading strategies that, primarily through the use of listed fitures and forward
currency comdracts, seek to identify and exploit directional moves in the market behavior of a broad range of
financial instruments and other assets incleding (bt not limited to) currencies, interest rates, equities, equity indices,
debt securities Cincluding bonds) and commodities (including energy, metal and agricultural commodities),

By maintaining comparatively small exposure to amy individual market and maintaining positions in a variety of
contracts, the Sub-Investment Manager aims to achieve long term diversification.  The Class Fund's palicy is to
manage price risk through diversification. Generally, the program mamtains positions in the majority of traded
markeis. Market concentration varics according to the strength of signals, volatility and liquidity amongst other
factors, The cmphasis is upon stcturing a geninely diversified set of market risk allocations that is designed to
maimize the probability of retums wherever profit opportanities appear. Market exposures are monitored daity and
the level of exposwre of the program i each market is quantifiable at all times and changes in accondance with
mark el valatility and liquidity,

The program emglovs a fully autemated system to collect, process and analvze market data (incheding cwrent and
historical price data) and identify and exploit directional moves in market behavier. The program trades across a
variety of froquencics to exploit trends over a range of timescales.  Positions are taken according to the ageregate
signal and are adjusted to control risk.

b) Foreign currency risk:

The Class Fund operstes intemationally and holds both monetary and non-monctary assets denominated in
currencies other than the USD, the functional currency. Fereign currency rigk, az defined in IFRS 7, arizes a3 the
value of fiture transactions, recognized monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in other currencies
fhectuate due to changes in foreign exchange ratez. IFRS 7 considers the foreign exchange exposure relating to non-
monelary assels and liabilities to be a component of market price rigk and nod foreign currency rigk, The Class Fund
monitors the expesure on all foreign currency denominated assetz and lisbilites.

The table below summarizes the Class Fund's monetary assets end liehilities, which are denominated in & currency
other than the 115D at 30 November 2022,

Concentration of foreign currency assels and liabilities

(expressed in USD) CHF KRW MYR SEK THBE  TRY ZAR

Assels 4377 335365 3150 040 57345 78,282 50,652

(expressed in USD) AUD CAD EUR GBP HKD  JPY SGD

Liabilities (1625T) (713700 (36042) (20.221) (42.8%2) (52000 (3.57%)
29.
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9. Financial risk management {continmed)

The table below summarizes the Class Fund's monetary assets and ligbilities, which are denominated in & currency

other than the USD at 30 Movember 2021

Concentration of foreign currency assels and liabilities
{expressed in US0) AU ERW MYR 5EK
Asiels 4,517 27273 292,698 B4

{expressed in USD) CAD CHF EUR GEFP

Linhilities (129.902)  (13.561) (141466) (49.216)

TRY

AR

23456 15075

HEI} JPY 50GD THE

(56.306) (13.365) (4.231) (3.1I8)

The table below awmmarizes the sensitivity of the Class Fund's net monetary assets and liabilides 1o changes in
foreign exchange movements at 30 November 2022, The analysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant
foreign exchange rate increased’decreased by the percentages to the USD as shown in the table below, with all ether

variables hield constat.

THE TRY FAR

{expressed m USDY) CHF EKRW MYR SEK

Change in exchange rate 1084 10%s 10®a 1o 107a
Met change m NAV 438 33537 315 a5 573
{expreszed in US0) AUD CAD EUR GEPF HEKD
Change in exchange rate 10%a 1070 1™ 1o 100
Met change in NAW (16260 (TA37) (S (L022) (4,285)

1074 102
THIR 5065
JPY  SGD

P 10

(328 (338)

The table below swnmarizes the sensitivity of the Class Fund's net monetary assets and liabilities to changes in
foreign exchange movemenils al 30 Novemnber 2021, The analyvsis is based on the assumplions that the relevait
foreign exchange rate moreased'decreased by the percentages to the USD as shown in the table below, with all other

variables hield constal.

{expressed i USD) AUD KREW MYR SEK
Change in exchange rate 10Pa 1Pa 1% 10%
et change m NAY 452 27273 19,270 a3
{expressed in USD) CAD CHF FUR GEP
Change in vp-:i;hlmg: rate 108 17 1Pa 1%
Met change in NAV (129907  (1,356) (14.147) (4,992)

TEY
1%
1346
HED
107

(5,631}
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9. Financial risk management (continued

The Class Fund may have exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates through investment of the Class
Fund's azsets in bonds and short-tenm money market mstruments denominated in curencies other than USDY. When
investments are made in non-US Dollar denommated bonds and short-term money market instruments, the Class
Fund enters mto currency hedging tramsactions.  Such transactions are designed to reduce, but not eliminate,
exchange-rae risk and protect all or any part of the assets of the Class Fund from a depreciation in the foreign
currency against the USD,

With respect to the AUD and JFY classes (MNote 8), the Class Fund enters into currency hedging transactions for the
Unitholders of such classes.

The markets in which foreign exchange transactions are effected are highly volatile, highly specialized and highly
techmical. Significant changes, including changes in hiquidity and prices, can occur in such markets within very
short periods of time, often within minutes.

Exeluding forwards, as at 30 November 2022, the Class Fund's financial assets and liabilities at fair vahie through
profit or less are USD denomimated, except for (348,175) (2021 (3488, 35400) in fulures contracls,

At 30 Novemnber 2022, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the USD increased or decreased by
10?6 with all other vanables held constant, the merease or decrease respectively i nel assels alinbutable to
Unitholder 15 shiown below (excluding the impact of forward curmency contracts used for class hedging)

Unrealized gain (loss) of Increase/decrease (+/-)
lorward contracts at NAV Impact of 10%

Currency 30 November 2022 change in FX rate

ALUD - USD (1,644) 40,817
BEL - USD (153.912) 23408
CAD-USD (17,801) 271,780
CHF - ELIR. (16,610) 1.511
CHF - USD (216,217 401,691
CLP - USD 49,343 119,936
CWH - USD (30,592) 133,060
COP - UsD IR.680 128,868
CZK - EUR 2,505 264
EUR - GBP 68464 6,224
EUR. - HUF (17.880) 1.625
EUR - JFY 64,289 5,200
EUR - HOK 3,395 308
EUR - PLN 25,503 1319
EUR - SER 36,028 3.274
EUR - USDx (95, 733) 156,485
GEP - LIED 20,391 48,303
1DE - USD (6, 934) 14400, 654
ILS - USD (149, 788) 344,979
IMNE - USD 5,548 60,556
TPy - UsD (112.951) 91,205
KEW - UsD (60, 030) 13,997
MXM - USD 24,062 227,406

a3l =
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9. Financial risk management {continued)

Unrealized gain (loss) of Increase/decrease (+/-)
lorward contracts at NAVY impact of 10%
Currency 30 November 2022 change in FX rate
WZD - USD g gE113 182,739
FEM - USD (15,34 26,53
PFHP - USD (16,431) 31643
BGD - USDy (7,151) 715
THE - USLDy (66,384) 1,638
TWI - USD 11,967 55,8304
UsSD - ZAR (28.682) 52,867

5 (423,004)

Unrealized gain (loss) of

Tutures coniracts

denominated in foreign
currencies at

Inerease/decrease (+-)
NAV Impact of 10%

Currency 30 Novemnber 2022* change in FX rate

AUD 5 8352 835
CAD 47,426 4,743
CHF 10,166 1.7
EUR 124,242 1242
GHBEP (21,473) 2,147
HELD (60,575) 6,057
Iy 543 324
KREW (B9.248) 3,925
MYR 191 19
SEK (6,980) 628
EGD (2.545) 155
THE 3,673 367
TRY (1.486) 149
AR (63,161 6,316

-3 [48.175)

* Total excludes USD amoamnts,
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9. Financial risk management (continued

At 30 November 2021, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the USD moreased or decreased by
1026 with all other vanables held constant, the merease or decrease respectively in net assets atinibutable to
Unitholder 15 shiown below (excluding the impact of forward curmency contracts used for class hedging)L

Unrealized gain (loss) of Increase/decrease (+/-)

forward contracis at NAVY Impact of 10%

Currency 30 November 2021 change in FX rate
ALUD=USD 4270 5 3B 925
BEL =UsD (39,636) 6,034
CAD-USD 15,385 198,461
CHF =ELR 83,660 8514
CHF = USD (14.031) 471,403
CLP = LSk (113,462) 113,634
CNH - USD 56,272 170,627
COP-USD 56,880 134,311
CIK =EUR (3,023) 457
EUR - GBP 770 T
EUR. =HUF {101,977y 8,27
EUR =IPY 1,976 180
ELUR =NOK 57,601 3,236
EUR -PLMN (38,728) 3,520
EUR -SEK 7271 3380
EUR <USD 225,334 564,456
GBP=LUSD 18518 JIB8le
IDE. - UsSD 5148 34,088
ILE - USD 31,946 3,195
IMNE - USD (11.326) 213,767
IPY - USD 64,080 313,592
KREW - UsD {11,357) 236,136
AN - USD {76, 650) 17,666
NZD - USD (79,149} 47,739
PEN - USD 4,300 29,569
FHP - UED 7,951 20,795
EUB - UsD (3,405) 189,460
5GD - USD 2,301 158,070
THE - USD» 77351 177,285
TWD=UsD 34,791 256,522
USD =ZAR 9513 49,050

304,544
=33
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9. Financial risk management (continued

Unrealized gain (loss) of
Tutures contracts

denominated in loreign Increase/decrease (+/-)

currencies at NAV impact of 10%

Currency 30 November 2021* change in FX rate
AUD 3 (33964) 5 5,396
CAD (102,237 10,224
CHF (40,714 4,071
EUE (123 36%) 12,337
GBP (54,4160 5442
HED B 369 8317
Py (27.141) 2,714
KEW (22,052) 2,205
MYR (2,505) 281
SEK 4,555 456
56D (10, 798) 1,080
THBE (12,423) 1,242
TRY (31,656) 3,166
TAR (18, 003y 1,800

5 {4%._354}

* Total excludes USD amounts.

In accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Sub-Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's net currency

pasition on a daity basis,

o) Interest rate sk
The Class Fund’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates to the Class Fund’s investments in fixed rate debt

securities. Government debt securities represent rero coupon securities with maturities as follows:

As at 30 Movennbser 2022 DMatrity
1. 8. Treasury Bills (UUSS 26,980,000 noticnal ) 2022-2023
Asg at 30 Movember 2021 ; Maturity
U, 5, Treasury Bills (USE 10,957,000 noticmal) 2021-2022

Additionally, at 30 November 2022, the Class Fund helds financial futures contracts with net notional of
(545313 4180 (30 Movermber 2021 : (526,893 030)) and maturties ranging from 1 month to 3 vears,

The value of fixed income assds may change based on imterest rate fluctuations.  Typically, when interest rates
increase, the value of fixed income assets tend to depreciate. On the contrary when mterest rate decreases, the value
of fixed income assets tend to appreciate. The degree of the change of the value of the fixed income azset will
depend on a number of factors including the matunity and conditions of issuance of the fixed income asset.

At 30 Novembrer 2022 and 2021, should interest rates have lowered by 10 basis pomts with all other variables
remaining consant, the impact on net assets atinbutable to Unitholder would not be material to the Class Fund.

.34
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9. Financial risk management (continued

In secordmee with the Class Fund's policy, the Sub-Investment Mmager monitors the Class Fund*s overall interest

senstivity on a daily basis,
Crectit risk

The Class Fund 15 exposed to credit risk, which is the sk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a
financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an ebligation.

The main concentration to which the Class Fund is exposed arises from the Class Fund's investments in debt
securitice.  The Class Fund is also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative productz, margin
accounts, cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from brokers and other receivable balances, The Class Fund

seeks Lo mitigate its exposure 1o credit risk by placing its cash balanices and transacting its securities activity with
large finaicial institutions

At 30 Novemnber 2022 portfolio by rating category for each class of debt securities is as follows:

Credit Rating 5 Amount %o of MAV
UL 8. Tressury Bills AAs 26,436,266 66.90

At 30 November 2021 pertfielio by rating category for each class of debt securities is as follows:

Credit Rating 5 Ammount % ol MAV
1. 8. Treasury Bills AA+ 10,956, 486 51.84

The Class Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure st default and
loss given default Management consider both historical analvsis and forward-locking information in determining
any expected credit loss, Cash and cash equivalents which potentially expose the Clazs Fund to credit risk consist
primarily of call balances and placements with an original maturity of 3 monihs or less from placement. The cash
equivalents are placed at Bank of New York Mellon (which has a S&FP credit rating of A) and thus are not
considered to pose a significant credit nisk,

AL 30 Movember 2022, all of the Class Pund's financial imstruments were held by Bank of MNew York Mellon,
Deutsche Bank, Citibank, JP Mongan (November 2021; Bank of Mew York Mellon, Credit Suisse, Dewtsche Bank
and Citibank). The brokers are members of & major secunitics exchange and st 30 November 2022 had S&P credit
ratings of A, A-, BBB+ and A- respectively (30 November 2021: A, BEB+, A- and BBE+), respectively, Although
the Class Fund monitors the brekers, and believes that they are appropriate custodians, there is no guarantee that
they will not become msolvent. While both the U5, Bankruptey Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of
1970 seek to protect customer property in the event of a failure, insolvency or liquidation of a broker dealer, there is
ne certainty that, in the event of a failure of a broker dealer that has custedy of Class Fund assets, the Class Fund
would not incur losses due to (1) its assets being unavailable for a period of time, and (1) ultimately receiving less
than full recovery of its assets, or (ii) both.  As subsmantially all of the Class Fund’s assets are custodied with four
custodians (30 Movember 2021 four), such losses could be significant and could materially impair the ability of the
Class Fund to achieve fis investment objective. Management consider the probability of default to be close to zero as
the counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their contractua) oblizstions in the near term. As a result, no loss
allowance has been recognized based on 12-month expected credit losses as amy such mmpaimment would be wholly
insignificant to the Class Fund.

All transactions are settled'pmd for upon delivery using approved brokers. The nisk of default 5 considered
minimal, a5 delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a

purchase once the securitics have been receved by the broker. The trade will fail of cither party fails to mect its
chligation.

.35,
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9. Financial risk management (comtimued
The counterparties to the Claes Fund*s non-cxchange traded derivative contracts are major financial institutions.

Management does not consider that credit risk related to open derivative contracts will have a material adverse effect
on the financial condition of the Class Fumd.  In accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Sub-Investment
Manager mondtors the Class Fund's credit pogition on a daily basis.

The maximum exposure to eredit risk before amy credit enhancemnents at 30 November 2022 is the camying ameami
of the financial assets as set out in the Statement of Financial Position.

Liqiiclity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Class Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its
obligations in full s they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The Class Fund 15 exposed to the daily settlement of margin calls on derivatives and to daily cash redemptions of
redeemable dhares. Iis policy is therefore to invest the majority of its assels in mvesimenis that are traded in an
active market and can be readily disposed. Only a limited proportion of its azsets in investments are not actively
traded on a stock exchange.

The Class Fund enters into futures and forward contracts which to vary ing degrees, represent a market risk in excess
of the amount reflected on the Class Fund's Statement of Financial Position, The notional amount of the contract
represents the extent of the Class Fund's participation in these financial instruments. Market risks associated with
such contracts anse duc to the possible movemnents in foreign exchange rates, mdices, and secunitics values
underlying these instruments.  Other market and credit risks include the possibility that there may be an illiquid
market for the contracts, that the change in the value of the contract may not directly comelate with changes in the
value of the underlying curmrencies, commodities, indices, or secunties, or that the counterparty to the futmres or
forward contract defaults on its ebligation to perform under the termes of the contract.

The table below anatyses the Class Fund's derivative financial linbilities that will be settled on a gross basis into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial Position date to the earliest
contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3 months 3 momths Grenter Total

30 November 2022: ar less 1o 12 monihs thmn 1 yeur lmnce
Financial lisbilitics ot fair valee through profit or loss

(o=t settled derivatives) 5 (2012864) 5 (271267) § (22,711  § (2,311,842)
30 Movember 2021:
Fimancisl lishilities at fair vahee through profit or loss

(et scttled derivatives) S (2602051) S (469,090) § (890) § (3,072,031)

= A
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9. Financial risk management (continued

The Class Fund's non-dervative financial liabalities are due within 3 months of the Statement of Financil Position
date.

Fair Velue Disclosures:

In accordance with IFRS 13, the Class Fund s required to classify fair value measurement using a far value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measuremenis. The far value hierarchy has
the Following levels:

+  Cuoted prices (umadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of liabilities (level 1),

= Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

= Imputs for the assct or liability that are not based on observable market data (that s, unobservable mputs)
(level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurerment is categorized m ils entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that 15 sigmficant to the fair value measurement in it entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an mput i1s assessed agminst the fair value measurement in its entirety. I a fair value
measurement wses observable mputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that
messurement 15 a level 3 messurement.  Assessing the significance of a particular mput o the fair value
measureTent i its entingty requires udgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitntes “observable’ requires significant judgment by the Class Fund. The Class
Fund considers observable data to be that market data that & readily available, regularly distributed o wpdated,
reliable and werifiable, not proprictary, and provided by independent sources that are actively imvelved in the
relevant mark et

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Class Fund's finencial assets end Habilities (by
clasz) measured at fair vahee & 30 November 2022:

Total
Assels Lewvel 1 Level 2 Level 3 halance
U5, Treasury Billz 5 W ARG S - 5 - 5 26,436,206
Forward curréncy contracts - 1.505,466 - 1,505 466
Fulures 874,118 - - 874,228
Total asseis 5 27310494 S 1,505,466 S - & ZABI5560
Total
Liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 halance
Forward cumrency contracts 5§ - 5 (1,235,609) 3 - % (1,235.699)
Futures (1,076,143) - - (1.076,143)
Total liabilities s (LO76,143) § (1.235699) £ - § Illll.ﬂ-ﬂ!

141/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

9. Financial risk management {continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Class Fumd's finemcinl assets and liabilities (by
class) measured at fair value 2 30 Novernber 2021:

Taial
Asvels Lavel 1 Lawel 2 Level 3 balnmce
1.5, Trewaury Bills s 10056485 8§ - & - 5 109856486
Farwand currency conimcls - 1'55..14' - llﬁj.l‘ﬂ.
Fulunes 6RO, 567 - - 36,567
Total nssets g 11,643,053 S 2155141 8 - 5 13,798,194
Tatal
Linbilities Lawveld 1 Ll 2 Lovel 3 balamee
Forward currency contracis 5 - 8 (LA9T530) 5 - 5 (1A497.530)
Futures (1,574,501 - - (1,574,501
Total liabilitles g (1.574.501) S (1.497.230) 3 - 5 (3072.,031)

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within
lewel 1, include active listed equities, most exchange traded derivatives, many US govenment treasury bills and
certain non-US sovereign obligations. The Class Fund does not adjust the quoted price for these instruments.

Financial inetruments that trade momarkets that are nol considered Lo be active but are valued based on quoted
market prices, dealer quotations or allemative pricing sources supported by observable mputs are classified within
level 20 These inchude certain non-mvestment-grade sovereign obligations, most investment-grade corporate bonds,
investments in other funds where redemption 15 net restricted, thanly traded liged equities and some over-the-
counter derivatives. As level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active markets and'or are subject
to transfer restnictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and’or non-transferability, which are
generally based on available market information

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable mputs, as they trade infrequently or not at all
As observable prices are not available for these securities, valuation techniques are used to derive the fair value, At
30 November, the Class Fund held no level 3 investments.

1, Assels and liabilities not carried ai Fair valoe but Tor swhich Fair value is disclosed

Investments are carmied at fair value. The carying values of all other financial assets and liabilities are considered to
approximate Gair value due to the short-term maturnity of these instruments,

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held with banks. Margin represents collateral cash
deposiis held in respect of open exchange-traded futures contracts and forward currency exchange. Cash and cash
equivalents and margin accounts have been determined using level 1 ingats,

Subscriptions recervable and other assets include the contractual amounts for settlement of other obligations due to
the Class Fumd. Pavables and aceruals represent the contractual amounts and sbligations due by the Class Fund for
settlerment of redemptions and expenses, These receivables and payables have been determined using level 2 inputs,

.38
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1. _Assets and liabilitdes not carried at Fair valoe but for which fair value is disclosed (continued

The puttable value of Participating Units 15 calculated based on the net difference between total assets and all other
labilities of the Class Fund m accordmmee with the Class Fund’s governing documents. These Paricipating Units
are not traded on an active market. A demand feature is attached to these units, as they are redeomable at the
Unitholder's option and can be put back to the Class Fund at any dealing date for cash equal bo a proportionate share
of the Class Fund's net asset value attributable to the Unit Class (Notes 2 and 8).  The fair value is based on the
armoul pavable on demand, discounted from the et date that the amount could be required to be paid. The inpact
of discounting in this instance is not material, As such, Level 2 is deemed to be the most appropriate categorization
for net assets attributable to the Unitholder,

11. Commibimenis

In the nommal course of business, the Trustee and Manager on behalf of the Class Fund enter into contracts that
contain a variety of representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The Trustee"s and
Manager's maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as this would involve future claims that may

be made against the Trustec and the Manager that have not vet occumed, however, based on experience,
management expects the risk of loss to the Class Fund to be remote.

12, Subseguent events
Management has performed a subsequent events review from | December 2022 through to 17 April 2023,

During this period there were subscriptions amounting to $L837.860 and redemptions ameounting to 32,922,112
respectively, There are no other subsequent events to report that relate to the Class Fund.

.30,
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Forward Contracts

Buy JPY 2,800,750 and Sell USD 20,103

Buy AU 1,300,000 and Sell USD 856,629
Buy BRL 1,075,069 and Sell UTSD 200, 000
Buy CAD 403,692 and Sell USD 300,000

Buy CHF 839,152 and Sell USD 875,000

Buy CLP1,615477,263 and Sell USD 1,730,000
Buy CWH 8,981,693 and Sell USD 1,250,000
By COP 5,534, 448,825 and Sell USD 1,100,000
Buy CZK 33,073,834 and Sell EUR 1,350,000
Buy EUR 1,125,000 and Sell CHF 1,103,248
Buy EUR 1,300,000 and Sell HUF 533,773,806
Buy EUR 1,300,000 and Sell NOK 13,318493
Buy EUR 1.500,000 and Sell USD 1,536,682
By EUR 125,000 and Sell CZK 3,050,863
Buy EUR 200,000 and Sell JPY 28,657,578
Bary EUTR 3500000 and Sell GBP 301,896

Buy EUR 5.600,000 and Sell SEK 60,727,112
Buy GBP 6,725.451 and Sell ELTR 7, T00,000
Buy GBP 800,000 and Sell USD 928,264

Buy IDR 2,357,065,002 and Sell USD 130,000
Buy ILS 5,348,203 and Sell USD 1,550,004
Bury INRE 37435450 and Sell USD 700,000
Bary JFY 238 936,495 and Sell USD 1,700,0:00
Bary JEY 596,336,743 and Sell EUR 4,100,000
Buy KRW 2,263, 157,670 and Sell TSD 1, 700, (0
Buy MXMN 65,152,826 and Sell USD 3,325, 000
Buy NOK 10,330,044 and Sell EUR 1,006,060
Bary NZD 3,000,000 and Sell USD 1,790,223
Buy FEN 674,587 and Sell USD 175,000

By PHFP 22,942,561 and Sell USE 400, 000
Bary PLM 30,700,825 and Sell ELTR 6,504, 000
Buy SEK 10985827 and Sell ELR 1,004,000
Buy 5GD 1,386,379 and Sell USD 1,000,000
Buy THE 14,241,111 and Sell USD 400,000
By TWI» 23,924,140 and Sell USD 730,000
Buy USD 100,000 and Sell CHF 94,000

By USD 100,000 and Sell CNH 702,803

Bary USD 1000000 and Sell IDR 1,554,954 312
Bary USD 1300000 and Sell INK 12,174,403
By USD 200,000 and Sell CLP 178,200,493
Bary USD 2500000 and Sell TWD 7,671,860
Buy USD 400,000 and Sell BRL 2,063,755
Buy USD 50,000 and Sell ZAR 850,645

By USD 300,000 and Sell CAD 669,334

.40 -

Maiurity Date
05 December 2022

21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decemnber 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decembrer 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decernber 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decamber 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decenber 2022
21 Decensher 2022
21 Decermber 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decenber 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decemnber 2022
21 December 2022
21 Decenber 2022
21 December 2022
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Unrealized Gain

194
26,722
5919
483
15,488
6,787
25,652
41,7486
4,708
2807
8,202
1,883
28,167
49
309
200
49,307
#1453
36,947
434
17817
5,340
37048
72,508
28,083
37,884
9234
100,181
557
6412
25 838
472
18215
4 Ri6
25,600
40
182
750
489
695
1,285
4,705
s
1,790
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Forward Contracts Maiurity Date Unrealized Gain
Buy ZAR 12,239.945 and Sell USD 700,000 21 December 2022 11,006
Buy AUD 932,152 and Sell USD 619,058 30 Decamber 2022 14,647
Buy JPY 4,021,173,784 and Sell USD 28,593,831 30 December 2022 G78,553
Buy AUy 600,000 and Sell LSD 404,585 18 Janueary 2023 a2
Buy GBP 400,040 and Sell USD 481,635 18 January 2023 1,385
Buy INE 49,146,625 and Sell USD 600,000 18 Janeary 2023 2,765
1,505, 466
Forward Contracts Maturity Date Unrealized (Loss)
Buy BRL 6,203 473 and Sell USD 1,200,000 21 December 2022 (10,775)
Buy CAD 1,064,691 and Sell USD 800,000 21 December 2022 (7,511}
Buy CHF 293,407 and Sell EUR 300,004 21 Decenwher 2022 (1.613)
Buy CHF 869475 and Sell USD 925,000 21 December 2022 {2,333)
Buy CLP 44,550,675 and Sell USD 50,000 21 December 2022 (174)
Buy COP 962,108,001 and Scll USD 204,000 21 Decemnber 2022 (L.51%)
Bay EUR 1,330,000 and Sell GBP 1178805 21 Decamnber 2022 (13879
Buy EUR 100,00 and Sell USD 104,623 21 December 2022 (30dH)
Buy EUR 200,000 and Sell PLI 942 491 21 December 2022 (3110
Buy EUR 300,000 and Sell HUF 124,420,778 21 December 2022 (1,222)
Buy EUR 4,075,000 and Sell CHF 4,022,958 21 Decomber 2022 (17.8%4)
Buy EUR o000 and Sell JPY 86,597,816 21 December 2022 (3,618)
By EUR 750,000 and Sell NOK 7,769,583 2] December 2022 (7.642)
Buy EUR 875,000 and Sell CZK 21 409,405 21 December 2022 {1,940
Bary HUF 651,805,200 and Sell EUR 1,600,000 21 December 2022 (23,2060
Buy IDE 5448927 440 and Sell USD 350,000 21 December 2022 (2,236)
Buy ILS 511,324 and Sell USDY 1 50,000 21 December 2022 (i)
Bary INR 12,202 468 and Sell USD 150,000 21 Decanber 2022 (145)
By KEW 65,390,685 and Sell LISy 50, 000 21 December 2022 (63)
Buy MXMN 484,225 and Sell USD 25,000 2] Decemnber 2022 N
Buy NOK 512,171 and Sell ELTE 50,000 21 December 2022 (80)
Buy FEN 287,917 and Sell USD 75,000 21 December 2022 (72)
Bary LN 235,171 and Sell ELTR 50,000 21 Decamnber 2022 22}
Buy SEK 21,684,261 and Sell EUR. 2,004, (100 21 December 2022 (17.991)
Buy TWD 3,061 830 and Sell USD 100,000 21 December 2022 (T38)
Buy USD 1,000,000 and Sell SGD 1,395,116 21 Decomber 2022 (25,3660
Buy USD 1,000,000 and Sell TWD 31,283,369 21 December 2022 (14,150
Bary USD 1,100,000 and Sell MXN 21,579,152 21 Decemnbrer 2022 (13815
Bary USD 1,130,000 and Sell ZAR 20,490,484 21 Decamber 2022 (40,273)
Bay USD 1,400,000 and Sell THB 51,753,776 21 December 2022 71,2200
Buy USD 1,550,000 and Sell KEW 2,145,247.510 21 December 2022 (BE.050)
Buy USD 1,800,000 and Sell IDR 28295 300,452 21 December 2022 (5.891)
By USD 2,450,000 and Sell CNH 17,647 408 21 December 2022 (56.426)
Buy USD 2,500,000 and Sell JPY 364,515,937 21 December 2022 (149,997)
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Forward Contracts Maturity Diate Unrealized
Buy USD 3,110,422 and Sell EUR 3,100,000 21 Decemnber 2022 (1236000
Bary USD 3,300,000 and Sell CAD 4,450,384 21 December 2022 (12.563)
Buy USD 430,000 and Sell CLP 409473,735 21 December 2022 (7,965)
Buy USD 5,000,000 and Sell ILS 17,627,588 21 December 2022 (167,490
Buy USD 5,500,000 and Sell CHF 5,399,970 21 Decernber 2022 (230.321)
Buy USD 30,000 and Sell COP 249,867,000 21 December 2022 (1.547)
Buy USD 500,000 and Sell PEN 1,982,102 21 December 2022 (15,829)
Buy USD 60,945 and Sell NZD 100,000 21 December 2022 (2.068)
Fayy UST 700,000 and Sell TNR 57,236,825 21 December 2022 (2.910)
Bary USD 700,000 and Sell PHP 40,805,528 21 Decernber 2022 (22.843)
Buy USD 750,00 and Sell BRL 3,992 655 21 December 2022 (14,761
Buy USD 851,403 and Sell AUD 1,300,000 21 December 2022 (31,948)
Bury USD 247, 26l and Sell GBP 800, (KH) 21 December 2022 (17.951)
Buy USD 40,223 and Sell IFY 5,599,000 30 December 2022 (53%)
Buy HUF 124,489,502 and Sell EUR 300,000 18 January 2023 (1,741)
5 (1,235,609
Average Market Unrealized
Holding Par Value Direction Book Price Price Crain( Loss)
US. Treasury Bill 12012022 3 100,000 Long 3100000 3100000 S ;
LS. Treasury Bill 011122023 5 412 oo Long 3398927 339648 (2475)
US. Tressury Bill 02/162023 3 50,000 Long 3028087 3,023,159 (4.928)
U8, Treasury Bill 03232023y o790 opo Long 1,064,120 1,055, 9600 (8,160)
US. Treasury Bill 042202023 3 990,000 Long 2867469 2,850,882 {16,587)
U5, Treasury Bill 05/18/2023 2,080,000 Leng 2,045,710 2,036,470 (9,240
U.S. Treasury Bill 06152023 2 500,000 Long 2,646,233 2,635,941 (10,292)
U.S. Treasury Bill 09072023 3 20 000 Long 3,091,721 3,089,920 (1,801}
U.S. Treasury Bill 10052023 5 30 pop Long 2780545 2,277,501 (3,044)
LS. Treasury Bill 1102023 5§ 000 Long 2969062 _ 2969985 g1
26,491,874 26436266 §  (S5,608)

.47
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Unrenlized
Fulures Contracts Diir ection Grain
3 MONTH SOFR FUT DEC23 () Shot g 2,925
3 MONTH SOFR FUT JUN23 () Short 5,350
3 MONTH S0FR FUT MAR23 “) Short 7,112
3 MONTH $OFR FUT MAR24 @ Short 72
3 MONTH $OFR FUT SEP23 o Sheet 5725
9. DAY BANK BILL JUN ) Shent 658
o0.DAY BANK BILL MAR24 i Shert i1
AUST 10% BOND FUT DEC22 47 Long 55,442
BANK ACCEPT FUTR JUNTS ) Short 4836
BANK ACCEPT FUTR MAR23 @ Short 3,525
BANEK ACCEPT FUTR SEP23 ()] Shert 400
CACS40 10 EURD FUT DEC22 1é6 Long 10,621
CANOLA FUTR (WCE) MAR23 3 Shert 1,010
CBOE VIX FUTURE DEC22 o) Short 11,440
CBOE VIX FUTURE JAN23 o) Short 11,000
COCOA FUTURE - IC MAR?23 10 Long 4,816
COCOMA FUTURE - IC MAY23 & Long 1,593
DAX INDEX FUTTUERE DEC22 1 Long 625
DA MINI E-CBOT DEC22 1 Long 3,815
E-MINI RUSS 2000 DEC22 1 Long 19,095
EURD STOXX 500 DEC22 ] Long 6,237
EURO-BUND FUTURE DEC22 8 Long 19,400
Euro-OAT Future Dec22 ] Long 13,557
EURO-SCHATZ FUT DEC22 (23) Shert 4 868
FTSE CHINA A%0 DEC22 65 Long 35,560
FTSE KLCI FUTURE DEC22 @ Short 191
FTSE TAI'WAN INDEX DEC22 il Long 15,860
FTSEMIB IDX FUT DEC22 21 Long 123,039
GASOLIMNE RBOB FUT FEB23 9 Lorig 37183
GASOLINE REOB FUT JAN23 3 Long 10,349
GOLD 100 OZ FUTR FEB23 @ Short 620
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU DEC24 i Shert 2,381
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU SEP23 (2 Shert 2,818
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU SEP24 2 Short 1,341
PN 10Y BONINOSE) DEC22 (1 Shert 6,378
KC HRW WHEAT FUT MAR23 @ Shert 5,838
KOREA 3YR BND FUT DEC22 5 Long 1,456
LOW U GASOIL G JAN23 ) Shert 28,125
MILL WHEAT EURD MAR23 3 Short 1,900
NEW ZEALAND § FUT DEC22 1 Long 1,255

.43
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Unrealized

Fulures Coniracls Diirection Graiin
NIKKEI 225 (CME) DEC22 1 Long ¢ 75
PALLADIUM FUTURE MAR23 1 Long 3450
PLATINUM FUTURE JAN23 1] Long 23295
RAFESEED EURD FEE23 (2 Shert 3332
&P MID 400 EMINI DEC22 2 Long 10,5440
SEPTSEX 60 IX FUT DEC22 12 Long 65,935
SET50 FUTURES DEC22 T3 Long 3673
SILVER FUTURE MAR23 1 Long 3,005
SOYBEAN FUTURE JAN23 7 Long 14,700
SOYBEAM OIL FUTE JAN23 15 Long 11,208
SUGAR #11 (WORLD) MAR23 ib Long 38,340
SUGAR #11 (WORLD) MAY23 12 Long 9262
SWISS MKT IX FUTR DEC22 11 Long 10,166
TOPIX INDX FUTRE DEC22 5 Long 1,01%
US 2VR NOTE (CBT) MAR23 4 Long 2,125
WHEAT FUTURE(CET) MAR23 (o) ~ Shent 17,950
WHEAT FUTURE(CET) MAY23 @ Shert 6,812
WHITE SUGAR {ICE) MARZ3 4 Long 5,560
WTI CRUDE FUTURE FEB23 (»  Shen 5,400
WTI CRUDE FUTURE JANM23 (1) Shert 167,820
£ §74,228
Unrealized

Futures Coniracis Ditr ection {Laoss)
3 MONTH SOFR FUT DEC24 fied) Short £ (@37
3 MONTH SOFR FUT JUN24 ey Shert (2,867
3 MONTH SOFR FUT MAR2S 2 Shert (2.375)
3 MONTH SOFR FUT SEP24 @ Shert (1.563)
3MO EURO EURIBOR Dec23 @ Shert (1,145)
3MO EURO EURIBOR DEC24 2 Short (2.421)
MO EURD EURIBOR Jun23 ) Short (300)
AMO EURO EURIBOR Jun24 (%) Short (1,380)
MO EURO EURIBOR Mar24 () Zhort (1,471}
MO EURO EURIBOR MAR2S ) Zhort (2.681)
AMO EURD BURIBOR Sep23 ) Shert (846)
S0-DAY BAMK BILL Jun23 (2 Ehort (1,510}
90-DAY BANK BILL SEP23 @ Short (©51)
90-DAY BANK BILL SEP24 m Short (263)

T
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Unrealized
Fulures Coniracls Diirection {Laoss)
AMSTERDAM [DX FUT DEC22 ) Shot g (2,603)
AUST 3YR BOND FUT DEC22 %) Shert (1,310)
BAMNK ACCEPT FUTR DEC23 2 Short (130)
BANK ACCEFT FUTR JUN24 {1 Short (1,087)
BANK ACCEPT FUTR. MAR24 (1 Short (744)
BIST 30 FUTURES DEC22 (18) Shert (1,486)
BRENT CRUDE FUTR FER23 1 Long (0, 0501)
BRENT CRUDE FUTR MAR23 1 Long (8,010
CE CURRENCY FUT DEC22 2 Shert (1,450)
CAN 10WER BOND FUT MAR23 (48) Short {26,300)
CATTLE FEEDER FUT JAM23 (2 Shert (2,062)
CHF CURRENCY FUT DEC22 a Short (1.437)
COCOA FUTURE MAR23 (11 Shert (18,7000
COCOA FUTURE May23 {5 Shert (9. 7700
COFF ROBUSTA 10TH JAN23 i Short (1,000
COFF ROBUSTA 10 Mar23 (3  Shent (340)
COFFEE C FUTURE JUL23 2 Shert (1,744
COFFEE C FUTURE MAR23 s Shert (5.869)
COFFEE © FUTURE MAY23 3 Shert (7.5%6)
COPPER FUTURE MAR23 (5 Short (11.475)
CORM FUTURE MAR23 0 Long (8, 638)
CORM FUTURE MAY23 10 Long {11,850)
COTTON N0, 2 FUTR MAR23 2 Short (8,150)
EURO FX CURR FUT DEC22 (N Short (4,194)
EURO-BOBL FUTURE DEC22 (13 Shert (11,298)
EURC-ETP FUTURE DEC22 4 Long (604}
EURO-BUXL 30Y BND DEC22 m Short (14,661
FTSE 1001D% FUT DEC22 (19) Shert (25.303)
FTSEJSE TOP 40 DEC22 (12) Short (62.425)
HANG SENG IDX FUT DEC22 ) Short (27.578)
HSCEI FUTURES DEC22 (12) Shert (32,997)
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU DEC23 (2) Shert (2,863)
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU JUN23 @) Short (2.878)
ICE 3MTH SONIA FLU JUN24 2 Shert (#50)
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU MARZS © Short (1,160)
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU MAR24 2) Shert (588)
ICE 3MTH SONIA FU MAR2S o~ Short (1,130)
KOREA 10YR BND FU DEC22 (28) Shert (81,662)
KOSFIZ INX FUT DEC22 (13 Short (9,042)
LEAN HOGS FUTURE APR23 4 Long (4, 7300

L45 .
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Unrealized

Fulures Conlracls Diirection {Lass)
LEAN HOGS FUTURE FEB23 4 Long g (16,630
LIVE CATTLE FUTR APR23 (m  Shent (4,380)
LIVE CATTLE FUTR FEB23 (12) Short (6,190)
LIVE CATTLEFUTR JUN23 i3 Shert (2,0400)
LME ALUMINUM FORWARD 037152023 ) Short {20,882)
LME ALUMINUM FORWARD 12°21/2022 - Long (10,058)
LME COFPER FORWARD 03/15/2023 I Short (6,226)
LME COPFER FORWARD 12/21/2022 . Long {19,8091)
LME LEAD FORWARID 03/15/2023 ) Long (7.878)
LME LEAD FORWARD 122172022 . Long (11,9407
LME NICKEL FORWARD 03/1 572023 - Long (32,571)
LME NICKEL FORWARD 12/21/2022 ] Long {B00)
LME ZINC FORWARD ($) 03/1 52023 ; Long (7,555)
LME ZINC FORWARD (5) 1221/2022 ) Long (54.14%)
MSCI EAFE DEC22 ) Short {58,530}
MSCT EMGMKT DEC22 (24) Shert {93,03%)
MSCT SING IX ETS DEC22 (19) Shert (2,545)
MNASDAQ 100 E-MINI DEC22 3 Short {44,615
MATURAL GAS FUTR FEB23 ) Shert (3.700)
MATURAL GAS FUTR JAN23 (1 Short (2. 200)
MIKKEI 225 (5GX) DEC2Z 5 Long (4,149)
WY HARE ULSD FUT FEE23 - Long (2.159)
MY HARB ULSD FUT JAN23 5 Long (31,332)
OMXS30 IND FUTURE DEC22 (5) short (6,980
S&PS00 EMINI FUT DEC22 @ Shert (14,275)
SCX IRON ORE 62% JAN23 @  Shent @71
SGM NIFTY 50 DEC22 (32) Shert (37.349)
SHORT EURO-BETP FU DEC22 (13) Short (17,774
SOYBEAN MEAL FUTR JAN23 3 Short (4,000
SPI 200 FUTURES DEC22 (25) Shert {43,158)
US 10%ER NOTE (CBTIMAR23 (66) Shert (47,859
US 3R NOTE (CBT) MAR23 i) Shert (2,844
US LONG BOND(CET) MAR3 D Short (7,766
US ULTEA BOND CBT MAR23 (5 Shert (7,664)
VETOXX FUTURE DEC22 M Short (68)
WHITE MAIZE-SAF Mar23 1 Long {736

$_ (1,076,143}

T
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2023
v v
36,092,192.04 4,819,390,403
368,332.86 49,183,487
7,770,723.81 1,037,624,750
873,629.93 78,355,868
3,632,047,237

650,623.62

90,754.21

346,680.11
11.94 1,594
9.63 864

A1/1v)
10,477
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2023 2,000,000 6,706
10,000,000 2,000,000
2023 6,112,247 1,617
2023
One
2023 340 24

500
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131

23 103

UFJ 133.53
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021
6,018,277 803,621 7,747,717 1,034,553
416,812 55,657
419,477 56,013 599,076 79,995
11,049 1,475 12,287 1,641
84,938 11,342 56,793 7,584
6,533,741 872,450 8,832,685 1,179,428
94,706 12,646 136,966 18,289
6,628,447 885,097 8,969,651 1,197,717
3,183,319 425,069
462,677 61,781 434,514 58,021
208,201 27,801 364,045 48,611
670,878 89,582 3,981,878 531,700
2,000,000 267,060 2,000,000 267,060
3,957,569 528,454 2,987,773 398,957
5,957,569 795,514 4,987,773 666,017
6,628,447 885,097 8,969,651 1,197,717
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021

22,385 2,989 41,671 5,564
22,385 2,989 41,671 5,564
4,775,820 637,715 4,697,515 627,259
212,503 28,376 221,622 29,593
38,400 5,128 38,400 5,128
5,026,723 671,218 4,957,537 661,980
5,049,108 674,207 4,999,208 667,544
2,663,914 355,712 2,646,420 353,376
1,008,720 134,694 1,006,565 134,407
361,491 48,270 361,491 48,270
44,638 5,961 42,629 5,692
549 73 10,000 1,335
4,079,312 544,711 4,067,105 543,081
969,796 129,497 932,103 124,464
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2022 2021 12 31
2,000,000 267,060 3,255,670 434,730 5,255,670 701,790
932,103 124,464 932,103 124,464
(1,200,000) (160,236) (1,200,000) (160,236)
2,000,000 267,060 2,987,773 398,957 4,987,773 666,017
969,796 129,497 969,796 129,497
2,000,000 267,060 3,957,569 528,454 5,957,569 795,514
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021
969,796 129,497 932,103 124,464
44,638 5,961 42,629 5,692
1,014,434 135,457 974,732 130,156
416,812 55,657 682,458 91,129
179,599 23,982 (155, 559) (20,772)
1,238 165 837 112
(28,145) (3,758) 5,735 766
(3,183,319) (425,069) (2,269,012) (302,981)
28,163 3,761 (71,711) (9,576)
(155, 844) (20,810) 118,434 15,814
(1,727,062) (230, 615) (714,086) (95,352)
(2,378) (318) (23,035) (3,076)
(1,200, 000) (160,236)
(1,729,440) (230,932) (1,937,121) (258, 664)
7,747,717 1,034,553 9,684,838 1,293,216
6,018,277 803,621 7,747,717 1,034,553
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2022 2021 12 31

1990 15

2009 2014
2014

Cayman Islands Monetary

Authority

2031
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15

2021 2020 12 31
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021 12 31
16 12
2022 2021 12 31
12
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2022 2021
1,918,277 3,247,717
4,100,000 4,500,000
6,018,277 7,747,717

2022 2021

325,292 469,711
94,185 129,365
419,477 599,076

2022 2021

5,057 25,716
53,240 75,730
21,513 76,634
79,810 178,080
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2022 2021
(549) (10, 000)
549 10,000

2022 2021
3,183,319
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2020 12 31 767,980 372,854 1,140,834
23,035 23,035

2021 12 31 791,015 372,854 1,163,869
2,378 2,378

2022 12 31 793,393 372,854 1,166,247
2020 12 31 682,667 301,607 984,274
26,243 16,386 42,629

2021 12 31 708,910 317,993 1,026,903
28,252 16,386 44,638

2022 12 31 737,162 334,379 1,071,541
2021 12 31 82,105 54,861 136,966
2022 12 31 56,231 38,475 94,706

2022 2021
10,000,000
2,000,000 2021 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
2022 12 31

2021 1,200,000

Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd.

Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly Secretaries Limited
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2022 2021
Tilly Nominees Limited 100 100
Coultry Directors Ltd 100 100
TillyDirectors Limited 100 100
Tilly Secretaries Limited 100 100
2022 12 31 975,610 2021 975,610
2022 2021
12 31
416,812
4,936 987
760,884
22,727 3,932
12 31
238,600 238,600
30,961 25,000
361,491 361,491
2022 2021 12 31
2011 8 31
10
2022 12 31
144,360 2021 143,920
11
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2022 12 31 53.97 2021 47.76
2021 2022 2021
10
2022 2021 12 31
2022
0.03 1.4 1,918,277 4,100,000 6,018,277
419,477 419,477
11,049 11,049
2,348,803 4,100,000 6,448,803
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462,677 462,677
462,677 462,677
1,886,126 4,100,000 5,986,126
2021
0.01  0.05 3,247,717 4,500,000 7,747,717
5.26 416,812 416,812
599,076 599,076
12,287 12,287
4,275,892 4,500,000 8,775,892
0.005  0.01 3,183,319 3,183,319
434,514 434,514
3,617,833 3,617,833
658,059 4,500,000 5,158,059
2022 12 31 30 2021
30 5,755 2021 1,444
30 2021 30 30
5,755 2021 1,444
2022 12 31 30 2020
30 12,300 2021 13,500
30 2021 30
30 12,300 2021 13,500
30
2022 2021 12 31

2021
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021 12 31
2022 12 31
2021
54,556 54,556
10 2022 12 31 0
2021 5,456
12
2021
13
15
2022 2021 12 31
400,000 500,000
2022 2021 12 31
14
2023
15
2022
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2022 and 2021
{exprassed in United States dolars)

2022 o
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents {Mote 3) $ 8,018,277 $ T.74T 717
Due from clients (Ncte 8) = 416 812
Client accounts recsivable (Note 4) 419,477 589,076
Other receivables 11,049 12,287
Prepaid expenses B4,938 58,793
6,533,741 8,832 685

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets (Note &) 84,706 138,066

§ Eg28.447 § 8959651

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Depositors’ accounts (Notes 5 and 8) $ = $ 3,183,318
Accounts payable and accrued expenses [Note 9) 462,677 434 514
Feas racaived in advance 208,201 364 045
&70,878 A.981 878

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Mote T) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained samings 3,957,569 2987773
5,957,569 4,987,773
§ 6628447 $ 8869651

See notes o consolidated financial staternents
Page 3
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive

Income
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(exprassed in United States dollars)
— 03 —_ 2021
INTEREST INCOME $ 22,385 $ 416M
INTEREST EXPENSE = -
NET INTEREST INCOME 22,385 41,671
OTHER INCOME
Diractorship, trustes and managament fees (Note §) 4,775,820 4,887 515
Miscellansous 212,503 221,822
Rental incoma 38,400 38,400
5,026,723 4 957 537
TOTAL INCOME 5,048,108 4,999 208
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits (Mote 10) 2,663,814 2,646,420
Administration (Note 8) 1,008,720 1,008,565
Rent expense {Note ) 361,491 361,451
Depreciation (Mote B) 44,538 42,629
Expected credit loss (Mote 4) 548 10,000
4,079,312 4067 105
NET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME § 868,786 $ 832 103

See noles lo consolidated financial slatenments
Fage 4
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(exprassed in United States dollars)

Tetal

Retained shareholder's

Share eamings equity

Ealance at Decamber 31, 2020 $ 2000000 $ 3255870 % 5255870
Net income and comprehensive income - 932 103 932,103
Dividends {Note T) - {1,200,000) {1,200,000)
Balance at December 31, 2021 2,000,000 2,987,773 4,087,773
Net income and comprehenaive income - 960,798 968,798
Balance at December 31, 2022 2,000,000 3,957,664 5,957,668

See noles lo consolidated financial slatenments
Page 5
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
{exprassed in United States dolars)

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income and comprehensive income
Adjustments for itams not affacting cash:
Depreciation

Changes in operating assets and liabilites:
Due from clients
Chent accounts receivable
Cther receivables
Prepaid expenses
Depositers’ accounts

Accounts payable and accrued expensas
Fees racaived in advance

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

2022 2024
$ 969,796 $ 932,108
44,838 42,629
1,014,434 974,732
418,812 BEZ 458
179,598 {155,559)

1,238 Bay

(28,145) 5,735
(3,183,319) {2,269,012)
28,163 {71,711)
{155,844) 118,434
{1,727,062) {714,088)
{2,378) {23,035)

. {1,200,000)

{1,729,440) (1,837,121}
7,747,717 9,684,838

5 6018277 1,147,717

See noles lo consolidated financial slatenments
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

{expressed in United States dollars)

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Cueensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid. (the "Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands on June 15, 1980 as Queensgate Bank & Trust Company Ltd. ("QBTC") and is a

whclly-owned subsidiary of Queensgate Group Ltd. (the "Parent”), a company also incomporated in the
Cayman Islands.

On January 2, 2008, QETC undertock a restructuring in order to separate the banking activities from
the trust activities, Subsequently, on January 1, 2014, the Company undertook a merger to re-combine
the bank and the trust activities. On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name to Queensgate
Bank and Trust Company Ltd. The newly named company continued as the entity formerly named
Queensgate Trust Company Ltd. and is Bcensed with a Class B Banking license, a Trust Company
license and Mutwal Fund Administration license with the Cayman |slands Monetary Authority ("CIMAT).

The Company has received an undertaking from the Cayman |slards Govemnment exempting it from all

local income, profits and capital gains taxes until February 1, 2031, Mo such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present time.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (fIFRS") and reflact the following policies:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statem ents incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries, Contral is achieved when the Company:

= has power over the investes;
» s exposed, of has nghts, to vanable returms fram its invabvement with the imestes; and
= has the ability to use its power to affect its retumns.

The Company reassaesses whether or not it controls an investes if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one of more of the three elements of control listed above.

Conszclidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or dispased of during the year are incuded in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control
the subsidiary.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation. Refer to
Nete 8 for ather disclosures relating to the subsidiaries,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

{exprassad in United States dolars) {continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of estimates

Financlal statements prepared in accerdance with |FRS reguire management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assats and liabiliies and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabdities at the date of the financial statements and the repoted amounts of income and expensa
during the reporting pericd. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash sguivalents indude cash and short-term deposits with an original matunty of thres
months or less.

Due from clients

Due from clients are temporary overdrafts given to dients for which the carrying value approximates
fair value as such amounts bear interest at variable rates. Due from clients are recorded net of a
provision for expected credit losses.

Client accounts receivable and allowance for doubiful accourts

Client accounts receivable indudes fee income receivables generated from the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees and receivables for disbursements made on behalf of
clients. Fee income receivables are stated net of a provision for expected credit losses, Receivables
for disbursements made on behalfl of dients do nat have a related provision for expeded credit losses
as these balances typically represent unbilled disbursements that the Company expects to recover
ocnce billed.

The provision for expected credit losses is established by charges to income based on the expected
credit losses in receivable balances. These are based upon management's knowledge of the current
condition of the Company’s clients.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

{exprassad in United States dolars) {continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is caleulated using the
straight-line method and is based on the estimated lives as follgws:

Furniture and computer equipment 3to 15 years
Maoter vehicles 8 years

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the camying amount of its fixed assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assel is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impaiment loss (if any). For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has
not identified any assels for which an impairment loss was recorded.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for all interest bearing instruments an an accrual basis using the effective yield method,

Revenue recogmition
The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

« directorship, trustes, management and other similar serdces provided to clients;

«  miscellanecus services provided to dients and disbursement charges for sendces pravided to
¢lients in connection with the directership, trustee and management services being provided;
and

« rental income for use of its office space.

Revenue i= measured based on the consideration that the Company is contracted to receive from ils
clients and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, The Company recognises revenues
on an accrual basis as performance obligations are satisfied.

The primary source of revenue for the Company is from the provision of directorship, trustee,
management, and registered office services to its clients. For these services, the Company recognises
revenues over the contracted perod of service which coincides with a calendar year. Vhere multiple

senvices are provided 1o a single client, the revenues generated from each bype of service are
recognised separately,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

{exprassad in United States dolars) {continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recogmition {confinued)

Miscellaneous imcome includes disbursement fees charged to clients for the Company's overhead and
fees charged to dients for miscellaneous senvices such as copy senvices for meetings or courier costs.
Disbursement fee revenue is charged based on a percentage of the contracted revenue for directorship,
trustes, managem ent and other similar services and is recognised inthe same pattern as the revenues
for those senvices, Fees charged to clients for miscellaneous senices are recognised in revenue at the
point in fime in which they are provided.,

The Company records rental income from leasing out their office space to third parties. The rental
income is eamed and recognised on a month to month basis and is not based an a contract.

Foreign currency translation

The Company's presentation curmency is the United States dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated or
accounted for in currencies other than United States dollars have been translated into United States
dollars at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the statem ent of financial posiion date. Foreign currency
transactions and income and expense items have been translated at the exchange rates existing at the
time of the transaction. Gains and losses ansing from translation are included in the consolidated
staterm ents of comprefensive IRcome,

Assets under adninistration

Securities, cash and other assets held on behall of clents in a trust, ageney or fiduciary capaecity are not
induded in these consolidated financial statements as such assets are not the property of the Company.

Financlal instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company's staternent of financlal position
when the Company becomes a party to the confractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assels
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
or subsequently measured at fair value depending on their cash flow characteristics. Due to the short
term nature of the financial assets and liabilities held by the Company, carrying value approximates fair
wvalue,

Financial assels are derecognised when the confraciual rights to the cash fiows from the assel expire,
orit transfers the financial asset and substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the assst
to ancther entity. Financial kabilities are derecognised when the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expine.

With IFR.S 9, the principle applied for the impairment of accounts receivable is based on expected credit
lasses. Mo provision for expected credit losses was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2022
and 2021.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

{expressed in United States dollars) {continued)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fiduciary activities

The Company. in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to litigation and claims In the normal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice from the Company's lawyers, no
provisions are required at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Leaszes

Under IFRS 15 Leases, a lessee recognizes assets and Eabiities for all lease arangements unless the
term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Due to the short term nature of the one
lease contract (Mote 9) existing as at and during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the
Company has recorded the month to month lease costs as rent expense on the consdidated statements
of comprehensive income.,

New and revised IFRS standards in issue but not yet effective

The Company has reviewed the IFRS standards that have been issued but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will not have a matenal impact on the financial statements in future pericds.

Critical aceounting judgermeit and key source of estimation uncertality

The Company makes estimates and assum plicns that affectthe reported amounts of assets and liabilties.
Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumatances. The Key areas
of judgement or estimation are with regard to the expected usseful economic lives of fived assets as well
as the recoverabiliy of client accounts receivable from clients and due from dients. The expected useful
economic lives of foted assels are based on prior experience of similar assets. Client accounts receivable
and due from clients are measured as either a 12 month o lifetime ECL based on credit risk
considerations.

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022 201
Call deposits 5 1.818.277F H 3247717
Short-term fixed deposits 4,100,000 4 500,000
$ 6018277 § 74T TI7

Short-term fixed deposits as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 mature within three months from the onginal
issued date.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
{exprassed in United States dolars) {continued)

4. CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts recervable in respect of fee income earned by the Company or disbursements made on behalf
of chents are com prised as follows:

—_—2e2 2021

Fea Income recaivables § 325,292 5 480,711
Receivables for disbursements mada on behalf of clients 84,185 128,365
Less: provision for expected cradit losses - =

] 419,477 5 590,078

Fee income receivables include amounts that are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Company has not recognised a provision for expected credit losses as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable. |n determining the
recoverability of the fee income receivables, the Company considers any change in the credit quality
of the receivables from the date the credit was inilially granted up to the end of the reporting period,

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impaired

— 2022  ____ 209

&1 to 180 days % 5,057 5 25718
181 to 360 days 63,240 76,730
COwver 360 days 21,613 76,634
Total = past due but not impaired ¥ 79,810 5 178,080

Movements in the provision for expected credit losses were as follows:

—_—g2 2031

Balance at beginning of yaar 5 - 3 -
Impairment losses reversed - -
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible (549) (10,000}
Increase in provision 549 10,000

Balance at end of year - - 3 -

To reduce exposure to credit risk, the Company reviews the credit quality of its customers and defines
credit limits as part of its onboarding precess. Credit quality and limits of the receivables portfelio are
reviewed on an ongoing basis throwughout the year,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
{exprassed it United States dolars) {continued)

5. DEPOSITORS' ACCOUNTS
Depositors’ accounts are classified as follows:

__ 20@3 208
Call deposits $ - § 3,183,319

6. FIXED ASSETS

Furniture: and

computer
aquipment Mator vehicles Total

Cost
Balance at Decembar 31, 2020 3 TET.080 § a72854 % 1,140,834
Additions 23,035 - 23,035
Balance at December 31, 2021 791,015 372,854 1,163,869
Additions 2,378 - 2378
Balance at December 31, 2022 793,303 372 B854 1,166 247
m d :

Balance at December 31, 2020 582,667 301,607 884,274
Depreciation expensa 28,243 16,388 42 629
Balance at December 31, 2021 706,810 317,983 1,026,803
Depreciation expense 28,252 16,386 44,638
Balance at December 31, 2022 737,162 334 379 1,071,541
Met book value, Decamber 31, 2021 3 82,105 % 54881 $ 136,868
Net book value, Decamber 31, 2022 3 56,231 § B475 § 84,706
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
{exprassed it United States dolars) {continued)

7. SHARE CAPITAL

Autharized;
10,000,000 Ordinary voting shares of $1 par value each

lspued;
2,000,000 Ordinary voting shares (2021: 2,000,000) $ 2000000 § 2000000

The Directors may dedare dividends and distributions on shares in issue and authorise payment of the
dividends or distnbutions out of the funds of the Company. Mo dividend or distribution shall be paid
except out of the realised or unrealised profits of the Company. For the year ended
December 31, 2022, no dividend was declared and paid (2021: $1,200,0000. The rights conferred upon
the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or ather rights shall not, unless otheraise
expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied by the
creation of issue of further shares ranking par passu therewith.

8. SUBSIDIARIES

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and s whally-owned
subsidiaries, Tily Nominees Limited and Coultry Directors Ltd.. and Tilly Nominees Limited, in tumn, is
parent to bwo whally-cwned subsidiaries, Tlly Deedors Limited and Tilly Secretaries Limited (oollectively,
the "Subsidiaries”). All of the subsidiaries listed below are licensed as Nominee (Trust) Companies with

CInda,.

Piace of Proportion of ownerzhip

Principal incorporation interest and voting power

Mame of subsidiary activity and cperation held by the Company

2022 2021
Provide nomines

Tiky Nominees Limited  shareholder services Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corparate

Coultry Directors Ltd director servicas Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide corporate

Tilly Directors Limited director services Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide company

Tilly Secrataries Limited secretary senvices Cayman Islands 100% 100%

The Company has not provided financial support to its Subsidiaries during the year, nor does it intend to
provide financial or other support. There are no significant restrictions on the Company’s ability to access
or use assels or settle liabilities of the Subsidiaries.

Ag of December 31, 2022 guarantess in the total amount of $875,610(2021: $5975,610) have been ssued
by the Company to the Sovernment of the Cayman Islands on behalfl of its Subsidiaries.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
{exprassed it United States dolars) {continued)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in the consclidated financial statements are the following related party balamces and

transactions:
2022 — 2021
As of December 31;
Due from clients - 416,812
Chanlt accounts ecaivable 4 936 987
Depositors’ accounts - 760,884
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 22727 3,832
For the years ended December 31;
Directorship, trustee and management fees 238 600 238,600
Directors' fees (included in Administration expenses) 30,961 25,000
Rent expansa 361,491 361,481

All transactions with related parties are conducted on normal commercial terms and at non-preferential
interest rates.

Certain employeas of the Company and certain assels of the Company are also utilised by the Parent
for its ongaing operations, The employees’ services and use of the assets is currently not recharged to
the Parent and is not separately quantifiable.

Some of the Company's employees also provided directorship senvces to a number of clients who had
deposits and overdrafts with the Company during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

The Company leases office space from a related party. The annual lease expired on
August 31, 2011, The Company is currently leasing the space on a month to month basis based on the
prior lease agreement

10, PENSION PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution pension scheme in place for all of its qualifying employeses.
Confributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescribed maximum of 5% and
are matched by the Compary. The Company pays the empleyees’ portion. The total pension cost
recognised dunng the year ended December 31, 2002 was $144 360 (2021: $143,920) and is included
in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of com prehensve income.

Page 15

181/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

{expressad in United States dolars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
of another entity. The Company enters into contracts invohing financal instruments during the normal
course of its business.

Risk exposures arising from financial instruments are mon#tored by management. The main risks
ariging from the Company’s financial instruments are credit and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market
rigk. interest rate risk and cumency nisk. The exposure fo, and management of these nsks s
summarnsed below, The year-end figures reported in these consclidated financial statements for
fimancial instruments are reflective of the position held throughout the year and are consistent with the
objectives, policies and strategies approved by management.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an abligation. Financial instruments which potentially expose
the Company to credit and counterparty risk consist pamarily of cash and cash equivalents, due from
clients and dient accounts receivable.

The Company manages its exposure to credit and counterparty risk by placing cash and fixed depaosits
with a regulated financial institution in the Cayman lelands, only taking referred business, and
menitering outstanding receivable balances, as discussed in Note 4,

The Company has a concentration risk with all cash and cash equivalents being held by one financial
institution in the Cayman Islands,

During the year ended December 31, 2022, approximately 53.97% (2021: 47.76%) of the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees were earned from its three (2021: three) largest customers.
Mo other customers contributed more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
management fees during 2022 or 2021,

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities.

The Company's objective is to maintain depositors” accounts which have a range of matunities
consistent with its asset base. Liguidity risk is monitored by the Company's management to ensura
that the Com pany has sufficient Bquid assets to be able to meet its future expected cash outflows. The
Company endeavors to match the terms of #s Rabilities and assets, primarily cash and cash equivalents,
fixed deposits and the depositors’ accounts, and maintains a significant proportion of its assets in cash
in order to manage liguidity risk. Refer to interest rate risk table disclosures for analysis of liquidity gap.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices, Market risk for the Company comprises interest rate risk and
currency risk.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
{exprassed it United States dolars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market inferest rates,

The Company manages its interest rate risk by ensuring that the interest rate on assets (i.e. cash and
due from clients) equals of excesds that of the relevant offsetting liability (i.e. depositors' accounts).
The tables below summarise this matching as of December 31, 2022 and 2021. ltems are allocated to
time bands by reference to the earlier of the next interest rate re-pricing date and the maturity date.

2022
Effectiva
Irrie roest
Rate Loss than Greater than
_orRange (%) _ On demand 3 months 3 montha Total
Monetary Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 00314 § 19IB2TT § 4,100,000 % - % BOBITT
Dua from clients - - . - -
Chent sccounts mecelvabie - 418,477 - 418,477
Other recadvabies - 11,048 - 11,048
$ 238803 § 4100000 $ - § 8448803
Monelary Lishilities:
Depoaltiars’ accourts - § - § $ - § -
Accounts payeable and accrusd
waperses - ___smgTr - 277
§ 4677 § - 5 - § 482877
Sensitivity/liquidity gap § 1888126 § 4100000 % - § 59581286
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
{exprassed it United States dolars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (centinued)

Imterest rate risk (continued)

2021:
Effective
Inerast
Rate Less than Greater than
_orRange (%) _Ondemand __ 3momths _ JImonths  Totsl
Monelary Assets:
Cash and cash squhlvalenta 001005 § 3247717 § 4500000 % - % THTTT
Due from clients 525 416,812 - - 418,812
Chant accounts receivabie - 589,076 . - 590,078
Ofbr riscadvabing - 12,287 - - 12287
3 4775860 § 4500000 $ 2 - § A775899
Monelary Liabilities:
Depositans’ accours 0005001 § 31E3ME § - 1 = § 318319
Accourts payable and sccrued § 43454 $ 434514
Bpenied - - - - -
617, § - § - BT,
SonsithvityMguidity gap $  SEADER § 4800000 % - 51568 056

The Company is exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluduations in prevailing levels of fived
and floating interest rates on its cash flows,

At December 31, 2022, with respect to the floating rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
(2021: 30) basis points higher with all other vanables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
been 55755 lower (2021 51,444 lower). If market interest rates had been 30 (2021: 30) basis points
lower with all cther variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have increased by less than
55,755 lower (2021; would have increased by less than $1.444) due to the fact that certain account
balances earn interest at a lower rate lower than 30 basis points.

At December 31, 2022, with respect to the fixed rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
(2020: 30) basis points higher with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
been 512300 higher (2021: $13,500 higher). If marked intefest rates had been 30 (2021: 30) basis
points lower with all ather variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have decreased by less
than 512300 (2021; would have decreased by less than 513,500) due to the fact that certain account
balances earn interest at a rate lower than 30 basis paints.

This analysis is based on interest bearing instruments held at year-end, and assumes the change in
interest rates took place at the beginning of the year and the interest bearing instruments were held
constant throughout the reporting pencd. Thirty basis points is the sensitivity rate used when reparting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the possible change in market rates for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
{axprassed in United States dollars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (centinued)

Currency risk

Currency risk |5 the nisk that the value of a financal instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company operates in the Cayman Islands, and mainly holds instruments with net exposures to the
Cayman |slands dollar (2021: Great Britain pound and Cayman Islands dollar). Since the Company
prepares its financial statements in United States dollars, the Company's consolidated statements of
fimancial postion are affected by movements in the exchange rate of vanous currencies against the
United States dollar. The Cayman Islands dollar has a fixed exchange rate against the United States
dollar.  Transkation gamslosses arsing from these exposures are reparted net in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income,

The table bedow shows the Company's currency exposures being those transactional expesures that
give rise to the net cumrency gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. Such exposures comprise the monetary liabilities of the Company that are nct
denominated in either the presentation currency or a currency with a fixed rate of exchange to the
presentation currency of the Company. To manage its currency risk, the Company may approximate
net foreign cumrency assets and liabilities against each other. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
these axposures were as follows:

Significant net foreign currency monetary assets, December 31, 2022 and 2021 (franslated into United
States dollars):

For the year ended December 31, 2022, no foreign currency assels or liabilities were held other than
the Cayman Islands dollar, which is pegged to the United States dollar,

Page 19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
{exprassed it United States dolars) {continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (centinued)

Currency risk (continued)
2021
Met foreign
Cash and cash Depositors’  currency monetary
equivalants aceounts assaby
GBP 3 54,556 3 - 3 54,556

Had the United States dollar been stronger or weaker by 10% against the relevant foreign currencies
with all other variables held constant, the net result for the year ended December 31, 2022 would
decrease or increase by nil (2021: $5,456).

12 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going
caneern while maximising the returm to the shareholder through the oplimisation of the debt and equity
balance, The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2021,

The capital sructure of the Company consists of issued Ordinary voting shares and retained samings.
13. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subjed to regulatory capital reguirements established by CIMA. Fallure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain actions by the regulator that, if undertaken, could
hawve a direct material effect on the Company's consclidated financial statements, Under capital
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescrnbed under The Banks and Trust Comparies Law of the
Cayman |slands, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that invelve quantitative measures
of the Company's asselts, limbilites, and certain off-balance sheet item s as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The Company's capital amaunts and classification ane also subject to qualitative
judgments by CIMA about components and risk weightings.

The Company is required at all times to maintain a capital adeguacy ratio of at least 15% according to
current regulation and the provisions of its Banking license., The Company is in compliance with this
requirenent as at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,

Under the terms of its licenses, the Company is required to maintain @ minimum net worth of

KYD400,000 (LS5500,0000. The Company is in compliance with this requirement as at and for the
vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,

14. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
The consclidated finandal statements were approved by a committee of the Board of Directors and

authonzed for issue on March 7, 2023
Page 20
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
{exprassed it United States dolars) {continued)

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Company is in the process of surrendering its Class B Banking license with CIMA in near fulure
and accordingly all the deposits balances were paid out during 2022,

Page 21
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2023 25,920,000 34 6,110
1965
2022 12 1,135,000,000 1,516
BNY
BNY
BNY
BNY
One

2023 900 14 9,004

UFJ

165.56

One
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One 2000
(Financial Conduct Authority)

2023 15,976 264
1997
2010
The Standards Board for Alternative Investments
(The Hedge Fund Standards Board) SBAI
(The Standards) 2007 (The
Hedge Fund Working Group)
2008 SBAI
2013 Financial Conduct Authority
2001 12 2013
Financial Services Authority 1998 12 2001 11
Securities and Futures Authority
1999 10 Commodity Futures Trading Commission
(Commodity Trading Advisor)
(Commodity Pool Operator) 2003 10 (Securities and
Exchange Commission) (Investment Advisor)
1999 10 (National Futures Association)
UFJ
2023 405
Q)
(i)
(iin) (iv) )
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(b) 2020
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2020
2020
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CIMA International Organization of Securities
Commissions Group of Offshore Banking Supervisors
2.2
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2.5 2020
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CIMA
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80,000 100,000

195/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.1

CIMA

CIMA

21

CIMA CIMA

4.2 CIMA

CIMA

@
(b)

©

(D

©)

4.3
CIMA
21

4.4 2006 12 27

CIMA CIMA
CIMA CIMA

CIMA

5.1

196/231



5.2
48
5.3
CIMA
5.4
5.5 CIMA
CIMA
CINA
@
Q)
©
(D
©
Q)
an
(®)
©
(

CIMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

3.2 CIMA

CIMA 10

CIMA

Q)
(i)

XVIIA
12

197/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5.6 CIMA
5.7
CIMA
5.8 CINA 24,390 30,488
8,536 36,585
42,682
8,536
6.1
@)
()
©
@
O
(i)
(iii)
(iv)
)
(vi)
(vii)
®©) 1
™®
@
W)
O

198/231



@

Q)

Q)

(m

(m

6.2
@

(b)

©

©)

©)

®

@

W)

(M
6.3

@

30

150

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20

CIMA

1925

50

199/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)
1907

©)
(d)
(e)
®

Q)

(i)

(iii)

v

(Tax Information Authority Law)( ) (Tax Information Authority)
Q)
(vi)

200/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@ 1

W)

(M 50

@

Q)

6.4

@
2016

(b)

©

(D —

(e) 50

CIMA
7.1 CIMA CIMA CIMA

7.2
7.1

500
7.3
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA

201/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7.4 7.3 10
7.5 7.3
CIMA
10
7.6 CIMA
(Grand Court)

7.7 CIMA 7.9

@
(b)

©

(D

e
®

7.8 7.7 CIMA

(@ CINA
(b) CIMA
©
(d) CINA CIMA
7.9 7.7 CIMA
@ 4(1)(b) 4(3) 4
@@ (

(b)
©
(D

©
7.10 CIMA 7.9 CIMA

7.11 CIMA

7.12  7.9(d) 7.9(e)
CINA CINA

202/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

.13 7.9(e)
14 7.13
.15 7.9(d) 7.9(e)
(a) CIVA CIMA CIMA
(b) CIMA CIMA
CIMA
@© ® CIMA
CIMA
.16 7.9(d) 7.9(e) 7.15
CIMA CIMA

.17 7.15 CIMA

(@ CINA

(®) 94(4)

©

(D

(e 7.9(d) 7.9(e)

.18 CIMA 7.17
7.17 7.9

.19 CIMA  7.9(a)

.20 7.17(c)

.21 CIMA CIMA

4(1)(b) 4(3) 4B @

CIMA
.1 CIMA CIMA
CIMA

500

203/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

8.3 CIMA
CINA
CINA
8.4 8.3 10
8.5 8.3
CINA
10
8.6 CIMA CINA
@
)
8.7 CIMA
8.8 CIMA 8.10
@
)
©
()
®
)
@
)
8.9 8.8 CINA
@
(i) CIMA
(ii) CIVA
(iii)
(iv) CIMA
(v) CINA

(vi) CINA

204/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(vii)

(viii)CINA CIMA
(b) CINA
(c) CINA

() CIva
8.10 8.8 CINA
@
®

©
©)

©
8.11 CIMA  8.10 CIMA CIMA

8.12  8.10(d) 8.10(e)
CIMA CIMA

8.13  8.10(e)

8.14 8.13

8.15  8.10(d) 8.10(e)

(@ CINA CINA CINA

O) CIMA
CINA CINA

@© @® CIMA
CIMA
8.16  8.10(d) 8.10(e)
() 8.15
(b CIMA
CIMA
8.17 8.15 CIMA

205/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@) CIMA

(®) 94(4)

(c) CINA 8.10(d) 8.10(e)

.18 CIMA 8.16 CIMA

.19 CIMA CIMA

(@ CINA

Q)
.20 CIMA
8.10

.21
CIMA

.1 CIMA CIMA

@
()
©
(d)
.2 9.1(a) 9.1(d)
CINA
.3 CIMA
(@ 9.1(a) 9.1(d)
()
©
4 CINA

CIMA
@

(b)
©

206/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(D

©)

CIMA
9.5 CIMA CIMA CIMA

9.6 CIMA
20

CIMA
10.1 CIMA

@) CIMA
)
©

@

©) CIMA
©

() CIMA
CINA

©)
®

@ (Director of

Public Prosecutions)

)
O) CIMA
CINA

@

11.1

207/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11.2

11.3
@ 14(1)

14(2)

(b)

11.4
@

(b)

©

)

©)

11.5
@

208/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)

11.6

12.1 257

12.2 247 248
@

(b) 10

©

13.1
2008

CIMA

7.17(b) 8.17(b)

13.2

CIMA

7.17(c)

13.3

CINA 7.17(d)

209/231



13.4

13.5

6.4(e)

14.1

CIMA

14.2  CIMA

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

CIMA

14.7

CIMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

6.1(1) 6.2(q) 6.3(i)

4@

2003 11 17

CIMA

20

210/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@) 13.1

Q)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
(b)

CINA
©)
CINA
(D 5(2)(a)
CINA
14.8
@ CINA
CINA

(b)
©

211/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(D

14.9
@) CINA

212/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(o) CIMA

CIMA

(©) 21

Q)

(i)

Gii)

@iv)

)

(D

O 21 A

Q)

(i)
10

Q)
12

® @
@

(i)
50

@iv)

15

213/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
(vi)
® 21 (9
(M
50
(in)
(iii)
()] 21 (6) 21 O] 21 )
Q)
(i)
(iii)
Q)
CIMA
14.10
€) Vi
CIMA
(b)
(©) 26
14.11
@
CIMA
CIMA

214/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)

©

(D

14.12
@) 4(1) 4(6) CIMA

CIMA

() 37

Q)

(i)

(iii)

v

)

(i) (xxit) (xxiii) (xxiv)
(vii)

(viii)

()

)

(xi)

(xii)
xiii)

(xiv)
(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

215/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(xviii)

(xix)
(xx)
(xxi)

(xxib)

(xxiit)
QY
(®)

(xxiv)

QY

®
©

216/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23 25 13

https://disclosure.edinet-fsa.go. jp/ 608633

37

15

217/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 20

2012 27

2012 27

218/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23 25

2012 27

2011 29

2012 16

219/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UFJ

2012 27
2016 22

One

2012 27

DIAM

50

50
50

220/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UFJ

JSDA

2012 27
DIAM

Aspect

50

50

50

221/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025 11 28
2012 27
2018
2012 16
15

usD
Uss$

2012 27

222/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DIAM DIAM
Aspect
2022 11 30 DIAM
DIAM Aspect
2022 11 30
ISA
IESBA Code 1ESBA
Code
40 46 [

223/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ISA

I1SA

2023 17

224/231



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0oDo00oO00o0O00DbDO000DO00nono(Ee26326)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditor”s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
not in its individual capacity but solely as Trustee of DIAM Cayman Trust —Aspect Managed Futures Fund,
a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion

Inour opinion, the financial statements present fairly, inall material respects, the financial position of DIAM Cayman
Trust —Aspect Managed Futures Fund (the Class Fund), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust as at 30 November 2022, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

What we have audited
The Class Fund®s financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 30 November 2022;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholder for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(1ESBA Code) . We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the I1ESBA Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Supplementary Schedule of
Investments (Unaudited) on pages 40-46, (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor™s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund®s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Class Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor”s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Class
Fund®s internal control.

) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of management s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Class Fund s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Class Fund in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent inwriting.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

17 April 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR= S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the ““Company””), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholder s equity and cash flows for the years then ended (all expressed in United States Dollars),
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial
performance, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor =s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines IS necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company ” s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company *s financial reporting process.
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To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Page 2
Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company ”s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
March 7, 2023
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